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467 Middletown Lincroft Road
G IAM PAO L O Lincroft, NJ 07738
& ASSOCIATES Tel: 732-842-4550

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Commissioners

Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park
242 South 6t Avenue

Highland Park, New Jersey 08904

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
business activities and the aggregate discretely present component unit of the of the
Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park (a governmental public corporation)
in Middlesex, New Jersey, hereafter referred to as the Authority, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority of the
Borough of Highland Park basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business
activities and the aggregate discretely present component unit of the Housing Authority
of the Borough of Highland Park as of March 31, 2022, and the respective changes in
financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
the Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s ability to continue as a going
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing
Authority of the Borough of Highland Park ’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Housing
Authority of the Borough of Highland Park.

e Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and
certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and OPEB and PERS supplemental information
on pages 5 through 18 and pages 66-70 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s basic
financial statements. The accompanying supplemental information on pages 71-79 is
presented for additional analysis and is not required part of the basic financial
statements.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The electronic filed Financial Data Schedule is presented for additional analysis as
required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s Real Estate
Assessment Center and is also not required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, and the Financial Data Schedule are
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
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In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, and the Financial Data
Schedule, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Information

The financial statement of the Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park as of
March 31, 2021, was audited by other auditors whose report dated January 17, 2022,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 2, 2022, in our consideration of the Housing Authority of the Borough of
Highland Park’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority of the
Borough of Highland Park’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fuarmpaolo & dasocicles
Lincroft, New Jersey
Date: December 2, 2022
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

As Management of the Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park (the
Authority), present the following discussion and analysis which is supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and is
intended to provide an easily readable explanation of the information provided in the
attached financial statements. Management Discussion and Analysis is designed to
focus on the current year activities, resulting changes, and current known facts. It is by
necessity highly summarized, and in order to gain a thorough understanding of the
Authority’s financial position, the financial statements and footnotes should be viewed in
their entirety beginning on page 19 of this report. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements as
presented elsewhere in this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The assets of the Authority primary government exceeded its liabilities at the close of the
most recent fiscal year by $1,680,377, a decrease in the financial position of $138,235 as
compared to the prior year.

As noted above, the net position of the Authority primary government was $1,680,377 as
of March 31, 2022. Of this amount, the primary government unrestricted net position is
a positive $1,386,512 representing an increase in the amount of $70,870 or 18% percent
from the previous year. Additional information on the Authority’s unrestricted net
positions can be found in Note 22 the financial statements, which is included in this
report.

The Authority primary government net investment in capital assets decreased $20,510 or
19% percent for an ending balance of $85,228. Additional information on the Authority’s
net investment in capital assets can be found in Note 20 to the financial statements,
which is included in this report.

The Authority primary government restricted net position decreased $188,595 from the
previous year for an ending balance of $208,637. Additional information on the
Authority’s restricted net position can be found in Note 21 to the financial statements,
which is included in this report.

The Authority’s primary government total cash and cash equivalent on March 31, 2022 is
$1,343,092 representing an increase of $78,126 or 6% percent from the prior fiscal year.
Total primary government operating cash increased $354,844 or 46% percent for an
ending balance of $1,120,419. Total primary government restricted cash and funded
reserves decreased $276,718 or 55% percent for an ending balance of $222,673. The full
detail of this amount can be found in the Statement of Cash Flows on pages 22-23 of this

report.

The Authority’s primary government total assets and deferred outflows are $4,101,480 of
which capital assets net book value is $525,666, deferred outflows in the amount of
$238,306, leaving total current assets at $3,337,508.

S



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - CONTINUED

Total current assets decreased from the previous year by $37,426 or 1% percent.
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents increased by $354,844, restricted cash
decreased $276,718, accounts receivables decreased by $120,781, and prepaid expenses
increased by $5,229.

The Authority primary government capital assets reported a decrease in the net book
value of the capital assets in the amount of $28,986 or 5% percent. The major factor
that contributed for the decrease was the purchase of fixed assets in the amount of
$4 1,490, less the recording of depreciation expense in the amount of $70,476.

A full detail of capital outlays can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements
Section Note — 8 Fixed Assets.

The Authority primary government reported an increase in the deferred outflow for the
pension cost in the amount of $116,006 for an ending balance of $238,306. The
Authority primary government reported a decrease in the deferred inflow for the pension
cost in the amount of $57,937 for an ending balance of $524,022. A full detail of the
pension reporting requirement can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements
Section Note — 10 Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources.

The Authority’s primary government total liabilities are reported at $1,897,081 of which
current liabilities are stated at $119,659, and noncurrent liabilities are stated at
$1,777,422. Total primary government liabilities increased during the year as compared
to the prior year in the amount of $245,766 or 15% percent. Total primary government
current liabilities decreased during the year by $83,516, leaving non-current liabilities
for an increase of $329,282 as compared to the previous year.

Total Authority’s primary government current liabilities decreased from the previous year
by $83,516 or 41% percent. Accounts payables increased by $255, accrued liabilities
increased by $2,693, tenant security deposit payable decreased by $13,071, and
unearned revenue decreased by $74,176. The current portion of the Capital Project
Bonds payable increased $783 from the prior year.

The Authority primary government total noncurrent liabilities increased by $329,282 or
41% percent. The increase was comprised of four accounts, long-term note payable
which decreased by $9,259 for an ending balance of $430,282, accrued compensated
absences — long term with no offsetting assets decreased $874 from the prior fiscal year
for an ending balance of $20,248, and non-current liabilities — other increased $219,832
for an ending balance of $412,790.

Accrued pension and other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liabilities increased
$119,583 for an ending balance of $914,102. Additional information on GASB #68
pension and GASB #75 effect the Authority’s accrued OPEB liabilities on March 31, 2022
can be found in Notes 18-19 to the financial statements, which is included in this report.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - CONTINUED
The Authority primary government had total operating revenue of $2,430,438 as
compared to $2,715,649 from the prior year for a decrease of $285,211 or 11% percent.

The Authority primary government had total operating expenses of $2,616,557 as
compared to $2,331,301 from the previous year for an increase of $285,256 or 12%
percent, resulting in excess expenses from operations in the amount of $186,119 for the
current year as compared to excess revenue from operations in the amount of $384,348
for a decrease in excess revenue of $570,467 or 148% percent from the previous year.

The Authority primary government had capital outlays in the amount of $41,490 for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2022.

The Authority’s Expenditures of Federal Awards amounted to $2,266,976 for the fiscal
year 2022 as compared to $2,554,969 for the previous fiscal year 2021 for a decrease of
$287,993 or 11% percent.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
The Housing Authority's annual report consists of financial statements that show
combined information about the Housing Authority's most significant programs:

1. Public and Indian Housing Program — RAD Program
2. Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

The Housing Authority's auditors provided assurance in their independent auditors'
report with which this MD&A is included, that the financial statements are fairly stated.
The auditors provide varying degrees of assurance regarding the other information
included in this report. A user of this report should read the independent auditors'
report carefully to determine the level of assurance provided for each of the other parts of

this report.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Housing
Authority’s primary government financial statements. The financial statements are
prepared on an entity wide basis with the discretely presented component unit and
business activities and consist of:

1) Statement of Net Position

2) Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
3) Statement of Cash Flows

4) Notes to the Financial Statements



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION - CONTINUED

The Authority’s financial statements and notes to financial statements included in this
Report were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) applicable to governmental entities in the United States of America for the
Enterprise Fund types. The Authority’s activities are primarily supported by HUD
subsidies and grants. The Authority’s function is to provide decent, safe, and sanitary
housing to low income and special needs populations. The financial statements can be
found on pages 19 through 23.

Statement of Net Position — This statement presents information on the Authority’s total
of assets and deferred outflow of resources, and total of liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position will serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — This statement presents
information showing how the Authority’s net position increased or decreased during the
current fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash inflows and cash outflows in the future periods.

Statement of Cash Flows- This statement presents information showing the total cash
receipts and cash disbursements of the Housing Authority during the current fiscal year.
The statement reflects the net changes in cash resulting from operations plus any other
cash requirements during the current year (i.e. capital additions, debt payments, prior
period obligations, etc.). In addition, the statement reflects the receipt of cash that was
obligated to the Housing Authority in prior periods and subsequently received during the
current fiscal year (i.e. accounts receivable, notes receivable, etc.).

Notes to the Financial Statements - Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided. These notes
give greater understanding on the overall activity of the Housing Authority and how
values are assigned to certain assets and liabilities and the longevity of these values. In
addition, notes reflect the impact (if any) of any uncertainties the Housing Authority may
face. The Notes to Financial Statements can be found in this Report beginning on page
24 through 65.




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION - CONTINUED

In addition to the basic financial statements listed above, our report includes
supplemental information. This information is to provide more detail on the Housing
Authority's various programs and the required information mandated by regulatory
bodies that fund the Housing Authority's various programs.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purpose of additional
analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance), Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-profit Organizations.
The schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards can be found on pages 71-72 of this
report.

1. Federal Awards - Pursuant to the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (Public
Law 104-156) and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance), federal award is defined as federal financial
assistance and federal cost reimbursement contracts that non-federal agencies
receive directly or indirectly from federal agencies or pass-through entities. Federal
financial assistance is defined as assistance that nonfederal entities receive or
administer in the form of grants, loans, loan guarantees, property, cooperative
agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, direct appropriations, and other
assistance.

2. Type A and Type B Programs - The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and
the Uniform Guidance establish the levels of expenditures or expenses to be used
in defining Type A and Type B Federal financial assistance programs. Type A
programs for the Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park are those
which equal or exceeded $750,000 in expenditures for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2022. Type B programs for the Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland
Park are those which are less than $750,000 in expenditures for the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2022.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY (ENTITY WIDE)
The following summarizes the computation of Net Position of the primary government

between March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021:

Computations of Net Position are as follows:

Year Ended Increase
March-22 March-21 (Decrease)
Cash $ 1,343,092 $ 1,264,966 $ 78,126
Other Current Assets 1,994,416 2,109,968 (115,552)
Capital Assets - Net 525,666 554,652 (28,986)
Deferred Outflows 238,306 122,300 116,006
Total Assets 4,101,480 4,051,886 49,594
Less: Current Liabilities (119,659) (203,1795) 83,516
Less: Non Current Liabilities (1,777,422) (1,448,140) (329,282)
Less: Deferred Inflows (524,022) (581,959) 57,937
Net Position $ 1,680,377 $ 1,818,612 $ (138,235)

Net Investment in Capital Assets  $ 85,228 $ 105,738 ' $ (20,510)

Restricted Net Position 208,637 397,232 (188,5995)
Unrestricted Net Position 1,386,512 1,315,642 70,870
Net Position $ 1,680,377 $ 1,818,612 $ (138,235)

Cash and restricted cash increased by $78,126 or 6% percent. Net cash provided by
operating activities was $79,661, net cash used by capital and related financing activities
was $4,077, and net cash provided by investing activities was $2,542. The full detail of
this amount can be found in the Statement of Cash Flows on pages 22-23 of this audit
report.

Other current assets decreased by $115,552 or 5% percent. Accounts receivables
decreased by $120,781 or 6% percent and prepaid expenses increased by $5,229 or 92%

percent.

The Authority primary government capital assets reported a decrease in the net book
value of the capital assets in the amount of $28,986 or 5% percent. The major factor
that contributed for the decrease was the purchase of fixed assets in the amount of
$41,490, less the recording of depreciation expense in the amount of $70,476.
Additional information on the Authority’s net investment in capital assets can be found
in Note 20 to the financial statements, which is included in this report.

The Authority primary government reported an increase in the deferred outflow for the
pension cost and OPEB in the amount of $116,006 for an ending balance of $238,306.
The Authority primary government reported a decrease in the deferred inflow for the
pension cost and OPEB in the amount of $57,937 for an ending balance of $524,022.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY (ENTITY WIDE) - CONTINUED

Total Authority’s primary government current liabilities decreased from the previous year
by $83,516 or 41% percent. Accounts payables increased by $255, accrued liabilities
increased by $2,693, tenant security deposit payable decreased $13,071, and unearned
revenue decreased by $74,176. The current portion of the Capital Project Bonds payable
increased $783 from the prior year.

The Authority primary government total noncurrent liabilities increased by $329,282 or
41% percent. The increase was comprised of four accounts, long-term note payable
which decreased by $9,259 for an ending balance of $430,282, accrued compensated
absences - long term with no offsetting assets decreased $874 from the prior fiscal year
for an ending balance of $20,248, and noncurrent liabilities — other which increased
$219,832 for an ending balance of $412,790.

Accrued pension and other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liabilities increased
$119,583 for an ending balance of $914,102. Additional information on GASB #68
pension and GASB #75 effect the Authority’s accrued OPEB liabilities on March 31, 2022
can be found in Notes 18-19 to the financial statements, which is included in this report.

The Authority’s primary government reported a net position is $1,680,377 which is made
up of three categories. The net investment in capital assets in the amount of $85,228.
The net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, and
construction in process); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still
outstanding. The Authority uses these capital assets to provide housing services to the
tenants; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The schedule
below reflects the activity in this account for the current fiscal year:

Balance March 31, 2021 $ 105,738
Fixed Asset Acquisitions 41,490
Depreciation Expense (70,476)
Payment of Loan 8,476

Balance March 31, 2022 $ 85,228

The Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park primary government operating
results for March 31, 2022, reported an increase in unrestricted net position of $70,870
or 18% percent for an ending balance of $1,386,512. A full detail of this account can be
found in the Notes to the Financial Statements Section Note 22.

The Authority’s primary government restricted net position decreased $188,595 from the
previous year for an ending balance of $208,637. Additional information on the
Authority’s restricted net position can be found in Note 21 to the financial statements,

which is included in this report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY (ENTITY WIDE) - CONTINUED
The following summarizes the changes in Net Position of the Authority’s primary

government between March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021:

Computation of Changes in Net Position are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended Increase
March-22 March-21 (Decrease)
Revenues
Tenant Revenues $ 155,296 $ 143,410 $ 11,886
HUD Subsidies 2,266,976 2,554,969 (287,993)
Other Revenues 8,166 17,270 (9,104)
Total Operating Income 2,430,438 2,715,649 (285,211)
Expenses
Operating Expenses 2,546,081 2,289,038 257,043
Depreciation Expense 70,476 42,263 28,213
Total Operating Expenses 2,616,557 2,331,301 285,256
Operating Income before
Non Operating Expenses (186,119) 384,348 (570,467)
Interest Income 2,542 4,180 (1,638)
Change in Net Position (183,577) 388,528 (572,1095)
Net Position Prior Year 4,162,899 3,774,371 388,528
Priod Period Adjustment 37,148 - 37,148
Eliminating Entries (2,336,093) (2,344,287) 8,194
Total Net Position $ 1,680,377 $ 1,818,612 $ (138,2395)

Approximately 93% percent of the Authority’s primary government total operating
revenue was provided by HUD operating subsidy, while 6% percent resulted from tenant
revenue. Charges for various services and fraud recovery provided the remaining 1%
percent of the total income.

12



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY (ENTITY WIDE) - CONTINUED

The Authority’s primary government operating expenses cover a range of expenses. The
largest expense was for Housing Assistance Payment expenses representing 75% percent
of total operating expenses. Administrative expenses accounted for 11% percent, tenant
services accounted for 3% percent, utilities expense accounted for 2% percent,
maintenance expense accounted for 3% percent, other operating expenses accounted for
3% percent, and depreciation accounted for the remaining 3% percent of the total
operating expenses.

The Authority primary government operating expenses exceeded its operating revenue
resulting in excess expenses from operations in the amount of $186,119 from operations
as compared to excess revenue from operations of $384,348 for the previous year. The
key elements for the increase in deficit in comparison to the prior year are as follow:

= The Authority reported an increase in the tenants dwelling rental revenue in the
amount of $11,886 or 8% percent.

» The Authority primary government reported a decrease in HUD PHA operating
grants in the amount of $287,993 or 11% percent. '

* Fraud recovery revenue increased in the amount of $3,140 or 83% percent.
»= Total other revenue decreased in the amount of $12,244 or 91% percent.

» The Authority reported an increase in the following expense accounts:
o Administrative expense increased $72,083 or 33% percent.
o Tenant services expense increased $71,173 or 2,785% percent.
o Maintenance expense increased $31,047 or 53% percent.
o Housing Assistance Payments increased $89,567 or 5% percent.
o Depreciation expense increased $28,213 or 67% percent.

* The Authority reported a decrease in the following expense accounts:
o Utilities expense decreased $429 or 1% percent.
o Other operating expenses decreased $6,398 or 7% percent.

Total net cash provided by operating activities during the year was $79,661 as compared
to cash provided by operations in the amount of $125,103 for the prior fiscal year. A full
detail of these amounts can be found on the Statement of Cash Flows on pages 22-23 of

this report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY (ENTITY WIDE) - CONTINUED
The following are financial highlights of significant items for the primary government for
a four-year period of time ending on March 31, 2022:

Significant Income
Total Tenant Revenue
HUD Operating Grants
HUD Capital Grants
Investment Income
Fraud Recovery

Other Income

Total

Payroll Expense
Administrative Salaries
Utilities Labor
Maintenance Labor
Employee Benefits Expense
Total Payroll Expense

Other Significant Expenses
Other Administrative Expenses
Utilities Expense

Maintenance Supplies
Maintenance Contract Cost
Insurance Premiums

Housing Assistance Payments
Total

Total Operating Expenses

Total of Federal Awards

THE AUTHORITY AS A WHOLE

March-22 March-21 March-20 March-19

$ 155,296 $ 143,410 $ 114,930 $ 611,273
2,266,976 2,554,969 2,509,593 1,939,562

= . ~ 11,076

2,542 4,180 2,620 5,912
6,946 3,806 4,093 -

1,220 13,464 187,359 149,519

$ 2,432,980 $ 2,719,829 $ 2,818,595 $ 2,717,342
3 27,295 $ 52,790 $ 34,494 $ 56,304
- 2,654 13,700 13,700

19,367 98,271 67,652 86,485
77,664 160,568 79,217 64,139

$ 124,326 $ 314,283 $ 195,063 $ 220,628
$ 253,082 $ 300,865 $ 353,381 $ 306,932
51,416 51,845 57,517 263,616
5,562 4,583 25,391 17,801
58,395 30,715 54,367 49,393
20,181 27,051 72,404 39,561
1,955,445 1,865,878 1,460,404 1,278,394
$ 2,344,081 $ 2,280,937 $ 2,023,464 $ 1,955,697
$ 2,616,557 $ 2,331,301 $ 2,155,529 $ 2,452,505
$ 2,266,976 $ 2,554,969 $ 2,509,593 $ 1,950,638

The Authority’s primary government revenues consist primarily of rents and subsidies
and grants received from HUD. The Authority receives subsidies each month based on a
pre-approved amount by HUD. Grants are drawn down based on need against a pre-

authorized funding level. By far, the largest portion of the Authority’s primary

government net position reflects its net investment in capital assets. The net investment
in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment, and construction in progress) uses
these capital assets to provide housing services to its tenants.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK PROGRAMS
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program:

Under the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, the Authority administers
contracts with independent landlords to provide housing to Section 8 tenants. The
Authority subsidizes the tenant’s rent through Housing Assistance Payment made to the
landlord. This program is also administered under an Annual Contributions Contract
(ACC) with HUD. HUD provides annual contributions funding to enable the Authority to
structure a lease that sets the participants’ rent at approximately 30% of household
income subject to certain restrictions.

Rental Assistance Demonstration Program

The Rental Assistance Demonstration was created to give public housing authorities
(PHAs) a powerful tool to preserve and improve public housing properties. RAD allows
public housing agencies to leverage public and private debt and equity to reinvest in the
public housing stock. Public housing units move to a Section 8 platform with a long-
term contract under which residents continue to pay 30% of their income towards the
rent and they maintain the same basic rights as they possess in the public housing
program.

Housing Choice Voucher CARES Act Programs

The CARES Act requires that recipients use of CARES grants be tied to preventing,
preparing for, and responding to COVID-19, including maintaining normal operations
and funding eligible affordable housing activities under NAHASDA during the period the
program is impacted by COVID-19. These funds may also be used to maintain normal
operations and fund eligible activities during the period that a recipient’s program is
impacted by COVID-19. HUD expects and encourages recipients to expend funds
expeditiously given the ongoing COVID-19 National Emergency.

Component Units - Blended

The Authority has identified the Highland Park Affordable Housing Corporation as a
component unit. The Authority has 100% ownership in the Housing Corporation. This
corporation operates on a fiscal year that ended on March 31. The method of accounting
for the component unit is in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. The financial data included in this report is based on the
information for the Housing Corporation at the end of its fiscal year, which was March
31, 2022. The entity is being reported as a blended component unit.

Component Unit — Discretely Presented

The Authority has identified one entity Kronman Affordable Housing LP. as a discretely
presented component unit. This entity was used for the RAD conversion of public
housing units into tax credit units. The method of accounting for the component unit is
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The accounting year end for the Kronman Affordable Housing LP. is December

31.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended March 31, 2022, individual program or grant budgets were prepared
by the Authority and adopted by the Board of Commissioners. The budgets were
primarily used as a management tool and have no legal stature. The budgets were
prepared in accordance with the accounting procedures prescribed by the applicable
funding agency.

The Authority submits its annual operating and capital budgets to the State of New
Jersey Department of Community Affairs in accordance with New Jersey statute. After
the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs approves the budget, it is formally
adopted by resolution of the Housing Authority’s Board of Commissioners. Once
adopted, the Board of Commissioners may amend the legally adopted budget when
unexpected modifications are required in estimated revenues and expenses. Each fund’s
budget is prepared on a detailed line-item basis. Revenues are budgeted by source and
expenditures are budgeted by expense classification within each revenue source.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

1 — Capital Assets

The Authority’s primary government net investment in capital assets as of March 31,
2022, was $525,666 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, equipment, and construction in progress. The total decrease
during the year in the Authority’s investment in capital assets was $28,986 or 95%
percent. Major capital expenditures of $4 1,490 were made during the year. Major
capital assets events during the fiscal year included the following:

e Appliance Replacements
e Installation of New Cabinets

Increase

March-22 March-21 (Decrease)
Land $ 18,106 $ 18,106 $ -
Building 1,276,173 1,262,445 13,728
Furniture, Equipment - Dwelling 116,850 89,088 27,762
Furniture, Equipment - Administration 80,905 80,905 -
Total Fixed Assets $ 1,492,034 $ 1,450,544 $ 41,490
Accumulated Depreciation (966,368) (895,892) (70,476)
Net Book Value $ 525666 $ 554,652 % (28,986)

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note 8 to the
financial statements, which is included in this report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION -CONTINUED

2 - Debt Administration

The Authority acquired mortgage financing of $473,500 through the New Jersey
Community Capital for the RAD conversion of the public housing units. Restricted cash
relating to the mortgage debt stood at $171,363 at the end of the fiscal year, with
mortgage payable of $440,438 in outstanding debt. A full disclosure of loans payable on
March 31, 2022, can be found in Note 16.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park is primarily dependent upon
HUD for the funding of operations; therefore, the Housing Authority is affected more by
Federal budget than by local economic conditions. Pressure on the federal budget will
remain in the form of both record deficits and competing funding needs. We do not
expect this consistent trend to change.

The following factors were considered in preparing the Authority’s budget for the fiscal
year ending March 31, 2023.

» State of New Jersey economy including the impact on tenant income. Local
inflationary, recessionary and employment trends, which can affect resident
incomes and therefore the amount of rental income. Tenant rental payments are
based on tenant income.

» Federal funding provided by congress to the Department of housing and Urban
Development

* Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wages rates.

» Continued increases in health care insurance are expected to impact employee
benefits cost over the next several years.

* Local inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies and other cost.
» Trends in the housing market which affect rental housing available for the Section

8 tenants, along with the amount of the rents charged by the private landlords, are
expected to have a continued impact on Section 8 HAP payments.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ON MARCH 31, 2022

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances
for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Ms.
Donna Brightman, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland
Park, 242 South 6t Street Highland Park, New Jersey 08904, or call (732) 572-4421.
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Assets
Current Assets:

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF MARCH 31, 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents- Unrestricted

Operating
Restricted

Total cash and equivalents

Accounts Receivables, Net of Allowances

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets
Land
Building

Furniture, Equipment - Dwelling
Furniture, Equipment - Administration
Total Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Book Value

Other Assets

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflow of Resources
State of New Jersey PERS and OPEB

Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

March 31, 2022

Primary Component Total
Government Units (Dec 2021) (Memorandum)
$ 1,120,419 $ 534,216 $ 1,654,635
222,673 912,316 1,134,989
1,343,092 1,446,532 2,789,624
1,983,533 3,451 1,986,984
10,883 27,833 38,716
3,337,508 1,477,816 4,815,324
18,106 - 18,106
1,276,173 6,153,604 7,429,777
116,850 16,322 133,172
80,905 - 80,905
1,492,034 6,169,926 7,661,960
(966,368) (366,511) (1,332,879)
525,666 5,803,415 6,329,081
- 31,277 31,277
- 31,277 31,277
3,863,174 7,312,508 11,175,682
238,306 - 238,306
$ 4,101,480 3 7,312,508 $ 11,413,988

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF MARCH 31, 2022

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Tenant Security Deposit Payable
Unearned Revenue
Long Term Debt - Current
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Long Term Debt - Non Current

Accrued Compensated Absences - Long-Term

Non Current Liabilties - Other

Accrued Other Post-Employment Benefits Liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
State of New Jersey PERS and OPEB

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources, and
Net Position

March 31, 2022

Primary Component Total
Government Units (Dec 2021) (Memorandum)
$ 87,256 3 104,341 191,597
9,681 38,525 48,206
12,564 40,159 52,723
2 1,909 1,911
10,156 - 10,156
119,659 184,934 304,593
430,282 3,232,378 3,662,660
20,248 - 20,248
412,790 - 412,790
914,102 - 914,102
1,777,422 3,232,378 5,009,800
1,897,081 3,417,312 5,314,393
524,022 - 524,022
85,228 2,571,037 2,656,265
208,637 872,157 1,080,794
1,386,512 452,002 1,838,514
1,680,377 3,895,196 5,575,573
$ 4,101,480 $ 7,312,508 $ 11,413,988

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Revenue:
Tenant Rental Revenue
HUD PHA Operating Grants
Fraud Recovery
Other Revenue

Total Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Administrative Expense
Tenant Services
Utilities Expense
Maintenance Expense
Other Operating Expenses
Housing Assistance Payments
Depreciations Expense

Total Operating Expenses

Excess (Expenses) Revenue From Operations
Non Operating Income:
Investment Income
Total Non Operating Income
Change in Net Position
Beginning Net Position
Prior Period Adjusments

Eliminating Entries
Beginning Net Position, Restated

Ending Net Position

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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March 31, 2022

Primary Component Total
Government Units (Dec 2021) (Memorandum)
3 155,296 3 1,015,812 $ 1,171,108
2,266,976 - 2,266,976
6,946 - 6,946
1,220 1,788,855 1,790,075
2,430,438 2,804,667 5,235,105
290,875 253,284 544,159
73,729 - 73,729
51,416 170,981 222,397
90,150 220,931 311,081
84,466 300,646 385,112
1,955,445 - 1,955,445
70,476 160,560 231,036
2,616,557 1,106,402 3,722,959
(186,119) 1,698,265 1,512,146
2,542 94 2,636
2,542 94 2,636
(183,577) 1,698,359 1,514,782
4,162,899 (139,256) 4,023,643
37,148 - 37,148
(2,336,093) 2,336,093 -
1,863,954 2,196,837 4,060,791
$ 1,680,377 3 3,895,196 $ 5,575,573




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Receipts from Tenants
Receipts from Federal Grants
Receipts from Misc. Sources
Payments to Vendors and Suppliers
Payments for Housing Assistance Payments
Payments to Employees
Payment of Employee Benefits
Payment of Utilities Expenses

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisitions and Construction of Capital Assets
(Payment) Increase in Non Current Liabilities - Other
Principal Payment on Debt
Net Effect of Deferred Inflows and Outflows
Decrease in Other Assets

Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Interest Income
Net Cash Providedby Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Beginning Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Ending Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Reconciliation of Cash Balances:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Unrestricted

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted
Total Ending Cash

March 31, 2022

Primary Component Total
Government Units (Dec 2021) (Memorandum)
3 140,910 3 1,013,304 $ 1,154,214
2,266,976 - 2,266,976
6,635 1,784,653 1,791,288
(91,579) (458,114) (549,693)
(1,955,445) - (1,955,445)
(158,756) (171,703) (330,459)
(77,664) (113,759) (191,423)
(51,416) (170,981) (222,397)
79,661 1,883,400 1,963,061
(41,490) - (41,490)
219,832 - 219,832
(8,476) (3,340,021) (3,348,497)
(173,943) - (173,943)
- (2,607) (2,607)
(4,077) (3,342,628) (3,346,705)
2,542 - 2,542
2,542 - 2,542
78,126 (1,459,228) (1,381,102)
1,264,966 2,905,760 4,170,726
$ 1,343,092 $ 1,446,532 $ 2,789,624
$ 1,120,419 $ 534,216 $ 1,654,635
222,673 912,316 1,134,989
$ 1,343,092 $ 1,446,532 $ 2,789,624

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(Used) Provided by Operating Activities
Excess Revenue from Operations

Adjustments to reconcile excess revenue over eXpenses
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation Expense

(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts Receivables
Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Liabilities

Tenant Security Deposit Payable

Unearned Revenue

Long Term Compensated Absences
Accrued Other Post-Employment Benefits Liabilities
Prior Period Adjustment

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Supplementary information
Interest Expense Paid during the Year

March 31, 2022

Primary Component Total
Government Units (Dec 2021) (Memorandum)
$ (186,119) $ 1,698,265 $ 1,512,146
70,476 160,560 231,036
128,975 2,508 131,483
(5,229) 8,085 2,856
255 26,490 26,745
2,693 (16,417) (13,724)
(13,071) 2,006 (11,065)
(74,176) 1,903 (72,273)
(874) - (874)
119,583 - 119,583
37,148 - 37,148
3 79,661 3 1,883,400 $ 1,963,061
3 29,801 $ 113,773 $ 143,574

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Organization - The Authority is a non-profit corporation which was organized

under the laws public corporation created under federal and state housing laws as
defined by State statute (N.J., S.A. 4A: 12A-1, et. Seq. the Housing Authority Act) for the
purpose of engaging in the development, acquisition and administrative activities of the
low-income housing program and other programs with similar objectives for low- and
moderate-income families residing in the Borough of Highland Park in accordance with
the rules and regulations prescribed by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD).

The Authority is governed by a Board of Commissioners which is essentially autonomous
but is responsible to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and the
State of New Jersey Department of Community Affairs. An Executive Director is
appointed by the Housing Authority’s Board to manage the day-to-day operations of the
Authority. Operating and modernization subsidies are provided to the Authority by the
federal government.

The financial statements include all the accounts of the Authority. The Authority is the
lowest level of government over which the Authority’s Board of Commissioners and
Executive Director exercise oversight responsibility. The Authority is not included in any
governmental “reporting entity” since its board members; while they are appointed
primarily by the Mayor of Highland Park and Borough Council, the Board of
Commissioners have decision making authority, the power to designate management, the
responsibility to significantly influence operations, and primary responsibility for
accounting and fiscal matters. The Authority has also concluded that it is excluded from
the Borough of Highland Park reporting entity.

The Authority's financial statements include the accounts of all the Authority's
operations. The criteria for including organizations as component units within the
Authority's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB's Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, include whether:

e the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name)

e the Authority holds the corporate powers of the organization

e the Authority appoints a voting majority of the organization's board

e the Authority is able to impose its will on the organization

e the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on
the Authority

e there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the Authority

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Authority has identified two (2) entity which
should be subject to evaluation for inclusion in the Authority’s reporting entity. The
Authority manages the financial affairs of Highland Park Affordable Housing Corporation

and the Kronman Affordable Housing LP.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
accompanying financial statements are presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for governmental units as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other
authoritative sources. The Authority has determined that the applicable measurement
focus (flow of economic resources) and accounting basis (accrual) is like that of a
commercial enterprise. As such, the use of proprietary funds best reflects the activities of
the Authority.

The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Nonexchange Transactions. The Statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting standards for non-exchange transactions including financial or capital
resources. The Authority's primary source of non-exchange revenue relates to grants and
subsidies. Grant and subsidy revenue are recognized at the time eligible program
expenditures occur and/or the Authority has complied with the grant and subsidy
requirements.

The Authority participates in the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS), which is sponsored and administered by the New Jersey Division of
Pensions and Benefits. It is a cost sharing, multiple employers defined benefit pension
plan. PERS was established in January 1955 under the provision of NJ SA 43:15A to
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, for substantially all full-time
employees of the state, its counties, municipalities, school districts or public agencies,
provided the employee is not a member of another state administered retirement system.

Component Units - Blended

The Authority has identified the Highland Park Affordable Housing Corporation as a
component unit. The Authority has 100% ownership in the Housing Corporation. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 61, due to the Authority manages the financial
affair of this nonprofit corporation and has 100% ownership; this entity is being reported
as a blended component unit. Therefore, the activity of this nonprofit corporation is
presented as component unit on the Authority’s electronically filed financial data
schedule. This corporation operates on a fiscal year that ended on March 31. The
method of accounting for the component unit is in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial data included in this
report is based on the information for the Housing Corporation at the end of its fiscal
year, which was March 31, 2022. Highland Park Affordable Housing Corporation was
formed for the purpose of developing, operating, and managing low- and moderate-
income housing in the Borough of Highland Park. This entity is being reported under
business activities on the FDS reporting system.

25



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

Significant Accounting Policies -continued

Component Unit — Discretely Presented

The Authority has identified one entity Kronman Affordable Housing LP. as a discretely
presented component unit. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 61, due to the
Authority manages the financial affair of this limited partnership and is financial burden
on the Authority to provide support; this entity is being reported as a discretely
presented component unit. Therefore, the activity of this limited partnership is
presented as component unit on the Authority’s electronically filed financial data
schedule. The method of accounting for the component unit is in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This limited
partnership operates on a calendar year that ended on December 31. Kronman
Affordable Housing LP. was formed for the purpose of developing, operating, and
managing low- and moderate-income housing in the Borough of Highland Park.

This limited partnership was used for the RAD conversion of public housing units into
tax credit units.

Basis of Accounting -

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Under the accrual basis of accounting revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. This requires the Housing Authority to
account for operations in a manner like private business or where the Board has decided
that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is
necessary for management accountability.

Revenue Recognition

The Authority’s major sources of revenue are HUD operating subsidies, tenants dwelling
rents, and all other revenue. Other revenue composed primarily of miscellaneous fees
from the tenant, and laundry income. The major sources of revenue for Highland Park
Affordable Housing Corporation and the Kronman Affordable Housing LP., the
component units, are tenant dwelling rents, housing assistances for the tenants,
charges to the tenants, laundry income and capital contributions from the Partners.

The Authority recognizes rental revenue from tenant(s) who entered into a lease
agreement (contract) for a unit in the development with durations of less than one year.
The Authority records revenue for such leases as prescribed by HUD. This standard
indicates that government subsidy and tenant payments are to be considered subject to
ASC 606. The Authority believes that such both rental and subsidy income streams are
exempt from compliance with ASC 606 due to their inclusion under current and future

lease standards.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

Basis of Accounting — Continued

Revenue Recognition - Continued

Revenue streams subject to ASC 606 include: tenant reimbursement of consumption-
based costs paid by the Authority on behalf of the tenant, such as utilities monthly fees.
Additional revenue includes miscellaneous fees from the tenant, laundry income,. Such
fees are ancillary to the lease process and are recognized as revenue at the point in time
such fees are incurred.

Non-operating revenue and expenses consist of revenues and expenses that are related
to financing and investing activities and result from non-exchange transactions or
ancillary activities. Tenants dwelling rental charges are determined and billed monthly
and are recognized as revenue when assessed because they are measurable and are
collectible within the current period. The amounts not received by March 31, are
accounts receivable and any amounts received for subsequent period are recorded as
deferred revenue.

Report Presentation

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to
enterprise funds of State and Local Governments on a going concern basis. The focus of
enterprise funds is the measurement of economic resources, that is, the determination
of operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position and
cash flows. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34 (as amended), Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments
("Statement"). The Statement requires the basic financial statements to be prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting
and requires the presentation of a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement
also requires the Authority to include Management's Discussion and Analysis as part of
Required Supplementary Information.

The federally funded programs administered by the Authority are detailed in the
Financial Data Schedule and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards; both are
which are included as Supplemental information.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity includes organizations, functions, and activities over which
appointed officials exercise oversight responsibility. Oversight responsibility is
determined based on financial interdependency, selection of governing authority,
designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations, and
accountability for fiscal matters.

All governmental activities and functions performed for the Authority are its direct
responsibility. The financial reporting entity consists of:

(a) the primary government which is the Authority,

(b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and
(c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth in GASB
Statement No. 61.

The decision to include a potential unit in the Authority’s reporting entity is based on
several criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 61, including legal standing, fiscal
dependency, and financial accountability. The Authority has identified Highland Park
Affordable Housing Corporation and the Kronman Affordable Housing LP. are a
component unit. The Authority has 100% ownership in Highland Park Affordable
Housing Corporation; this entity is being reported as a blended component unit. The
Authority manages the financial affair of Kronman Affordable Housing LP., a limited
partnership and is financial burden on the Authority to provide support; this entity is
being reported as a discretely presented component unit.

The method of accounting for the component unit is in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Highland Park
Affordable Housing Corporation financial data included in this report is based on the
information for the Housing Corporation at the end of its fiscal year, which was March

21, 2022,

The method of accounting for the component unit is in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Kronman Affordable
Housing LP., discretely presented component unit, operates on a calendar year that
ended on December 31.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

Other accounting policies are as follows:

1 — Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market. The
Authority considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

2 — Collection losses on accounts receivable are charged against an allowance for
doubtful accounts. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established, as necessary,
based on past experience and other factors which, in management's judgment, deserve
current recognition in estimating bad debts.

3 — Buildings and equipment are recorded at cost for all programs and depreciation is
computed on the straight-line basis.

4 — Repairs funded out of operations, such as painting, roofing, and plumbing, are
charged against income for all programs.

S — Operating subsidies received from HUD are recorded as income when earned.

6 — The cost of accumulated unpaid compensated absences, including fringe benefits, is
reported in the period earned rather than in the period paid.

7 — Prepaid expenses represent payments made by the Authority in the current year to
provide services occurring in the subsequent fiscal year.

8 — The Authority does not have any infrastructure assets for its Enterprise Fund.

9 - Inter-fund receivable and payables arise from inter-fund transactions and are
recorded by all funds in the period in which the transactions are executed.

10- Advertising cost is charged to expense when incurred.

11- Costs related to environmental remediation are charged to expense. Other
environmental costs are also charged to expense unless they increase the value of the
property and/or provide future economic benefits, in which event they are capitalized.
Liabilities are recognized when the expenditures are considered probable and can be
reasonably estimated. Measurement of liabilities is based on currently enacted laws and
regulations, existing technology, and undiscounted site-specific costs. Generally, such
recognition coincides with the Authority’s commitment to a formal plan of action.

12- When expenses are incurred where both restricted and unrestricted net positions are

available the Authority will first use the restricted funds until they are exhausted and
then the unrestricted net position will be used.
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Other accounting policies - Continued

13- Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued,
which may result in a loss to the Authority, but which will only be resolved when one or
more future events occur or fail to occur. The Authority’s management and its legal
counsel assess such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an
exercise of judgment. In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings that
are pending against the Authority or unasserted claims that may result in such
proceedings, the Authority’s legal counsel evaluates the perceived merits of any legal
proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief
sought or expected to be sought therein. If the assessment of a contingency indicates
that it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of the liability
can be estimated, then the estimated liability would be accrued in the Authority’s
financial statements. If the assessment indicates that a potentially material loss
contingency is not probable but is reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be
estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, together with an estimate of the
range of possible loss if determinable and material, would be disclosed. Loss
contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they involve
guarantees, in which case the nature of the guarantee would be disclosed.

14 - Taxes
The Authority operates as defined by the Internal Revenue Code Section 115 and is

exempt from income taxes under Section 115.

Under federal, state, and local law, the Authority's program is exempt from income,
property, and excise taxes. However, the Authority is required to make payments in lieu
of taxes (PILOT) for the rental housing program in accordance with the provision of a
Cooperation Agreement. Under the Cooperation Agreement, the Authority pay the
municipality a 10% of its net shelter rent.

15 - Net Position

In accordance with the provisions of Statement No. 34 ("Statement 34") of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board "Basic Financial Statements - and
Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments’, the
Authority has classified its net position into three components - net investment in
capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as

follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent
related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the
unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment in capital
assets. Rather that portion of the debt is included in the same net position
component as the unspent proceeds.
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Other accounting policies - Continued

15 - Net Position -continued

Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net
position use through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through
debt covenants), granters, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position
that do not meet the definitions of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets."

16 - Operating and non-operating revenues and expenses

The Authority’s major sources of revenue are HUD operating subsidies, tenants dwelling
rents, and all other revenue. Other revenue composed primarily of miscellaneous fees
from the tenant, and laundry income. The major sources of revenue for Highland Park
Affordable Housing Corporation and the Kronman Affordable Housing LP., the
component units, are tenant dwelling rents, housing assistances for the tenants,
charges to the tenants, laundry income and capital contributions from the Partners.

Operating expenses include wages, utilities, maintenance, depreciation of capital
assets, administrative expenses and all other expenses relating to the provision of safe,
decent and affordable housing services that do not result from transactions defined as
capital and relatedfinancing, non-capital and related financing or investing activities.

17-Impairment Losses

The Authority reviews its investment in real estate for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such property may not be
recoverable. Recoverability is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the
real estate to the future net undiscounted cash flow expected to be generated by the
rental property including any estimated proceeds from the eventual disposition of the
real estate. If the real estate is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of the real estate
exceeds the fair value of such property. No impairment losses were recognized in 2022.

18- Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Authority has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect
and that may impact its financial statements. The Authority does not believe that there
are any new accounting pronouncements that have been issued that might have a
material impact on its financial position or results of operations.
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Budgetary and Policy Control -

The Authority submits its annual operating subsidy and capital budgets to HUD. The
Authority also submits its annual operating and capital budgets to the State of New
Jersey Department of Community Affairs in accordance with New Jersey statute. After
the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs approves the budget, it is formally
adopted by resolution of the Housing Authority’s Board of Commissioners. Once
adopted, the Board of Commissioners may amend the legally adopted budget when
unexpected modifications are required in estimated revenues and expenses. Each fund’s
budget is prepared on a detailed line-item basis. Revenues are budgeted by source and
expenditures are budgeted by expense classification within each revenue source.

Activities - The programs administered by the Authority were:

Units
Program CFDA # Project # Authorized

Public Housing
Public and Indian Housing Program 14.850 N/A
Section 8
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 NJ39-V044 269
HCV CARES Act Program 14.HCC
Component Unit
Highland Park Affordable Housing
Corporation 24
Kronman Affordable Housing LP. 100

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program:

Under the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, the Authority administers
contracts with independent landlords to provide housing to Section 8 tenants. The
Authority subsidizes the tenant’s rent through Housing Assistance Payment made to the
landlord. This program is also administered under an Annual Contributions Contract
(ACC) with HUD. HUD provides annual contributions funding to enable the Authority to
structure a lease that sets the participants’ rent at approximately 30% of household
income subject to certain restrictions.
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Activities — Continued

Rental Assistance Demonstration Program

The Rental Assistance Demonstration was created to give public housing authorities
(PHAs) a powerful tool to preserve and improve public housing properties. RAD allows
public housing agencies to leverage public and private debt and equity to reinvest in the
public housing stock. Public housing units move to a Section 8 platform with a long-
term contract under which residents continue to pay 30% of their income towards the
rent and they maintain the same basic rights as they possess in the public housing
program.

Housing Choice Voucher CARES Act Programs

The CARES Act requires that recipients use of CARES grants be tied to preventing,
preparing for, and responding to COVID-19, including maintaining normal operations
and funding eligible affordable housing activities under NAHASDA during the period the
program is impacted by COVID-19. These funds may also be used to maintain normal
operations and fund eligible activities during the period that a recipient’s program is
impacted by COVID-19. HUD expects and encourages recipients to expend funds
expeditiously given the ongoing COVID-19 National Emergency.

Component Units - Blended

The Authority has identified the Highland Park Affordable Housing Corporation as a
component unit. The Authority has 100% ownership in the Housing Corporation. This
corporation operates on a fiscal year that ended on March 31. The method of accounting
for the component unit is in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. The financial data included in this report is based on the
information for the Housing Corporation at the end of its fiscal year, which was March
31, 2022. The entity is being reported as a blended component unit.

Component Unit — Discretely Presented

The Authority has identified one entity Kronman Affordable Housing LP. as a discretely
presented component unit. This entity was used for the RAD conversion of public
housing units into tax credit units. The method of accounting for the component unit is
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The accounting year end for the Kronman Affordable Housing LP. is December

31.
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Board of Commissioners - The criteria used in determining the scope of the entity
for financial reporting purposes are as follows:

1. The ability of the Board to exercise supervision of a component unit's financial
independence.

2. The Board's governing authority extends to financial decision-making authority
and is held primarily accountable for decisions.

3. The Board appoints the management of the Authority who is responsible for the

day-to-day operations and this management are directly accountable to the
Board.

4. The ability of the Board to significantly influence operations through budgetary
approvals, signing and authorizing contracts, exercising control over facilities,
and approving the hiring or retention of key managerial personnel.

5. The ability of the Board to have absolute authority over all funds of the
Authority and have accountability in fiscal matters.

Revenue from Rental Contracts

The Authority recognizes rental revenue from tenant’s who entered into a lease
agreement (contract) for a unit in the development. The lease agreement allows the
tenant use of the unit until the expiration of the lease term or cancellation by the tenant
or landlord due to cause. Lease terms are for one year, unless mutually agreed to by the
landlord and the tenant(s) prior to move in. Tenant(s) have to be income qualified in
accordance with income limitations before allowed to occupy unit.

All lease agreements have similar terms; therefore all lease contract revenue has been
aggregated in the caption rental income in the statement of revenue, expenses and
changes in net position. The lease contract revenue is recognized at the end of each
month when the performance obligation of providing a unit is complete. The
performance obligation each month also includes applicable maintenance services
provided to maintain the tenant’s unit and the buildings. Since the performance of these
services are completed simultaneously each month, they are treated as performance
obligation.

Tenant’s lease payments are due the first day of each month of the lease term. The
monthly unit rental charge is determined based on HUD calculation. Any tenant’s rental
payment not received by the fifth day of each month will be considered late. Any rental
payment received in advance of the first day of the month are recognized as deferred
revenue since the conditions for recognizing revenue will not occur until the end of the
following month.

34



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 2 - ESTIMATES

The financial statements and related disclosures are prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Management is required
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and revenue and expenses during the period reported. These estimates
include assessing the collectability of accounts receivable, the use, and recoverability of
inventory, and the useful lives and impairment of tangible and intangible assets, among
others. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of revisions
are reflected in the financial statements in the period they are determined to be
necessary. Actual results could differ from the estimates.

NOTE 3 - PENSION PLAN

The Authority participates in the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS), which is sponsored and administered by the New Jersey Division of
Pensions and Benefits. It is a cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit pension
plan. PERS was established in January 1955 under the provision of NJ SA 43:15A to
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, for substantially all full-time
employees of the state, its counties, municipalities, school districts or public agencies,
provided the employee is not a member of another state administered retirement system.

Membership is mandatory for such employees. Contributions to the plan are made by
both the employee and the Authority. Required employee contributions to the system are
based on a flat rate determined by the New Jersey Division of Pensions for active plan
members. Benefits paid to retired employees are based on length of service, latest
earnings, and veteran status. Authority contributions to the system are determined by
PERS and are billed annually to the Authority.

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994 and Chapter
115, P.L. of 1998, and requires contributions by active members and contributing
employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New
Jersey legislation. Employer’s contributions are actuarially determined annually by the
Division of Pensions. Employee contributions are currently 7.50% of base wages.

The annual employer contribution includes funding for basic retirement allowances,
cost-of-living adjustments, and the cost of medical premiums after retirement for
qualified retirees, and noncontributory death benefits. The Authority’s contribution for
2022 amounted to $22,256.

Further information on the Pension Plan and its effects due to the adoption of GASB 68
can be found in Note 19- Accrued Pension Liability.
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NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

The Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park cash, cash equivalents are
stated at cost, which approximates market. Cash, cash equivalents and investment
include cash in banks, petty cash and a money market checking account and certificates
of deposit, and other investments with original maturities of less than three months from
the date of purchase. For the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include all cash balances and highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months
or less at time of purchase.

Concentration of Credit Risk

HUD requires housing authorities to invest excess funds in obligations of the United
States, Certificates of Deposit, or any other federally insured investment. HUD also
requires that deposits be fully always collateralized. Acceptable collateralization includes
FDIC/FSLIC insurance and the market value of securities purchased and pledged to the
political subdivision. Pursuant to HUD restrictions, obligations of the United States are
allowed as security for deposits. Obligations furnished as security must be held by the
Authority or with an unaffiliated bank or trust company for the account of the Authority.
These funds at various banks are collateral pledge under the New Jersey Government
Code of the Banking Law.

Risk Disclosures

Collateral for Deposits

New Jersey Authorities are required by N.J.S.A. 40A:5-14 to deposit public funds in a
bank or trust company having its place of business in the State of New Jersey and
organized under the laws of the United States or State of New Jersey or the New Jersey
Cash Management Fund. N.J.S.A. 40A:5-15.1 provides a list of securities which may be
purchased by New Jersey Authorities. The Authority is required to deposit funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental
units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates,
the Authority's investment policy limits the Authority's investment portfolio to
maturities not to exceed two years at time of purchase. On March 31, 2022, the
Authority's deposits and investments were not limited and all of which are either
available on demand or have maturities of less than two years.

Credit Risk

This is risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all its value due to a real or
perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt. The Authority's
investment policy is that none of its total portfolio may be invested in securities of
any single issuer, other than the US Government, its agencies, and instrumentalities.
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NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH - CONTINUED

Credit Risk -Continued

The Authority’s checking accounts are categorized to give indication of the level of credit
risk assumed by the Authority. Custodial credit risk is the risk in the event of a bank
failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned to it. The custodial credit risk
categories are described as follows:

Bank Balances

Primary Component
Depository Accounts Government Units
Insured $ 250,994 $ 671,363
Collateralized held by pledging bank's
trust department in the Authority's name 205,703 -
Uninsured - 1,661,564
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 456,697 $ 2,332,927

The Highland Park Affordable Housing Corporation and the Kronman Affordable Housing
LP. maintains its cash in financial institutions insured by Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). Deposit accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits.

The Corporation and the limited partnership have not experienced any losses in such
accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash
equivalent.

Restricted Cash
The Authority has restricted cash on March 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, which
consists of the following:

Primary Component
Government Unit

March-22 December-21
HCV HAP Reserves $ 37,274 -
Tenant Security Deposits 12,564 40,159
Rehab Escrow Reserve 171,363 -
Operating Reserve Deficit Account - 340,518
Repalacement Reserve Account 129,600
Reserve Funds - 402,039
Reserve for HAP Liability 1,472 -
Total Restricted and Funded Reserves $ 222,673 $ 912,316

The Authority has restricted cash on March 31, 2022, in the amount of $12,564 for
tenant security deposits an interest-bearing account.

37



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH -CONTINUED

Restricted Cash - Continued

The restricted cash in the amount of $37,274 was reported under the Housing Choice
Voucher Program as a HAP reserve for future use. The Authority invested these funds
with Unity Bank. In accordance with HUD’s PIH Notice 2007-03, the reserve fund
balance may only be used to assist additional families up to the number of units under
contract.

In connection with the RAD conversion, the Highland Park Affordable Housing
Corporation is required to maintain certain escrow accounts and reserves by HUD and
New Jersey Community Capital. The escrow reserve must be used in the renovations
and capital improvements to the Corporation assets in the conversion of the Low-Income
Housing Program to the RAD conversion units. The Corporation is required to make
monthly deposits of $1,610 to the account. Below is the activity of the account:

March-22
Beginning Balance $ 179,894
Required Deposit 17,710
Interest Income =
Disbursements (26,241)
Ending Balance $ 171,363

Component Unit — Discretely Presented

Kronman Affordable Housing LP., under the terms of the partnership agreement, the
Project is required to set aside specified amounts for future Project expenditures. As of
December 31, 2021, these restricted deposits amounted to $872,157, respectively, are
held in separate accounts in trust and generally are not available for operating

purposes.

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, the Partnership is to establish a replacement
reserve in the amount of $54 per apartment per month. Disbursements from the
replacement reserve are to be used for capital expenditures only with the consent of the
Special Limited Partner. As of December 31, 2021, the replacement reserve balance was

$129,600.

Pursuant to the Partnership Agreement, the Partnership is to establish an operating
reserve in the amount of $300,000. The payment of the Limited Partner's third
capital installment to fund any future operating deficits. As of December 31, 2021,
the operating reserve balance was $340,518.

The Partnership set up a guarantor collateral account to reserve funds as
collateral. As of December 31, 2021, the guarantor collateral balance was

$402,039.
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NOTE S - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts Receivable on March 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, consisted of the
following:

Primary Component
Government Unit

March-22 December-21
Tenants Accounts Receivable - Present $ 32,908 3,451
Less Allowance for Doubtful - Tenants (24,494) -
Tenants Accounts Receivable - Net 8,414 3,451
Accounts Receivable - Fraud Recovery 1,531 -
Accounts Receivable - Advances 1,973,588 -
Less Allowance for Doubtful - Other - -
Total Accounts Receivables $ 1,983,533 $ 3,451

Tenant rents are due the first of each month. Management considers rents outstanding
after the 5th day of the month as past due and late charges are applied accordingly.
The Authority carries its accounts receivable at cost less an allowance for doubtful
accounts. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established, as necessary, based on
experience and other factors which, in management's judgment, deserve current
recognition in estimating bad debts. Such factors include growth and composition of
accounts receivable, the relationship of the allowance for doubtful accounts to accounts
receivable, and current economic conditions. The determination of the collectability of
amounts due requires the Authority to make judgments regarding future events and
trends. Allowances for doubtful accounts are determined based on assessing the
Authority’s portfolio on an individual tenants and on an overall basis. This process
consists of a review of historical collection experience, current aging status of the
tenant’s account. Based on a review of these factors, the Authority establishes or
adjusts the allowance for specific tenants and the accounts receivable portfolio as a
whole. Management continually monitors payment patterns of the tenants, investigates
past-due accounts to assess likelihood of collections, and monitors the industry and
economic trends to estimate required allowances.

NOTE 6 - PREPAID EXPENSES

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items. All purchases of insurance premiums are written off monthly.
Acquisition of materials and supplies are accounted for on the consumption method, that
is, the expenses are charged when the items are consumed. Prepaid expenses on March
31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, consisted of prepaid insurance amounts.
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Interfund activity is reported as short-term loans, services provided during the course of
operations, reimbursements, or transfers. Short term loans are reported as interfund
short term receivables and payable as appropriate. The amounts between the various
programs administered by the Authority on March 31, 2022, are detailed on the
Financial Data Schedule of this report. Interfund receivables and payables between
funds are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

NOTE 8 - FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets consist primarily of expenditures to acquire, construct, place in operations,
and improve the facilities of the Authority and are stated by an appraisal value.
Expenditures for repairs, maintenance and minor renewals are charged against income
in the year they are incurred. Major renewals and betterment are capitalized.
Expenditures are capitalized when they meet the Capitalization Policy requirements.
Under the policy, assets purchased or constructed at a cost not exceeding $5,000 are
expensed when incurred. Donated fixed assets are stated at their fair value on the date
donated.

Depreciation

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense for March 31, 2022, was $70,476. Depreciation is provided using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

1. Building and Structure 40 years
2. Office Improvements 7 years

3. Site Improvements 15 years
4. Building Components 15 years
5. Office Equipment S years

The Authority reviews its investment in real estate for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such property may not be
recoverable. Recoverability is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the
asset to the future net undiscounted cash flow expected to be generated and any
estimated proceeds from the eventual disposition. If the long-lived assets are considered
to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured at the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value as determined from an appraisal,
discounted cash flow analysis, or other valuation technique. No impairment losses were
recognized in 2022.
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NOTE 8 - FIXED ASSETS - CONTINUED
Below is a schedule of changes in fixed assets for the twelve months ending March 31,
2022, for the primary government:

March-21 Additions March-22
Land $ 18,106 $ - $ 18,106
Building 1,262,445 13,728 1,276,173
Furniture, Equipment - Dwelling 89,088 27,762 116,850
Furniture, Equipment - Administration 80,905 - 80,905
Total Fixed Assets 1,450,544 41,490 1,492,034
Accumulated Depreciation (895,892) (70,476) (966,368)
Net Book Value $ 554,652 $ (28,986) 525,666

Below is a schedule of the net book value of the fixed assets for the Housing Authority of
the Borough of Highland Park primary government as of March 31, 2022:

March-22
Land $ 18,106
Building 466,350
Furniture, Equipment - Dwelling 29,995
Furniture, Equipment - Administration 11,215
Net Book Value $ 525,666

Below is a schedule of changes in fixed assets for the twelve months ending December
31, 2021, for the component unit:

December-20 Additions December-21

Land $ - B - B =
Building 6,153,604 - 6,153,604
Furniture, Equipment - Dwelling 16,322 - 16,322
Total Fixed Assets 6,169,926 - 6,169,926
Accumulated Depreciation (208,558) (157,953) (366,511)
Net Book Value $ 5,961,368 $ (157,953) $ 5,803,415

NOTE 9 - OTHER ASSETS

Component Unit — Discretely Presented

Kronman Affordable Housing LP. reported other assets in the amount of $31,277. This
represents unamortized tax credit fees. Tax credit fees are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the 15-year tax credit compliance period. The amortization expense for the

year was $2,607.

41



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 10 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

A deferred outflow is an outflow of resources, which is a consumption of net assets by
the government that is applicable to the reporting period. A deferred inflow is an inflow
of resources, which is an acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to
the reporting period.

The OPEB and Pension Liability discussed in Note 18 and 19 resulted in the Authority
incurring deferred outflows and inflows. The difference between expected and actual
experience with regard to economic and demographic factors, when the actuary
calculated the net pension liability, is amortized over a five-year closed period for PERS
and OPEB, reflecting the average remaining service life of members (active and inactive
members), respectively. The first year of amortization is recognized as pension expense
with the remaining years shown as either a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred
inflow of resources.

The Authority’s deferred outflows and inflows are as follows:

Deferred Outflows of Resources OPEB Pension Total
Differences Between Expected and Actual

Experiences $ 18,147 $ 3,551 $ 21,698
Changes in Assumptions 103,048 - 103,048
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual

Earning on Pension Plan Investments 438 1,172 1,610

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between
Contributions and Proportionate Share of

Contributions 58,011 53,939 111,950
Total $ 179,644 $ 58,662 $ 238,306

Deferred Inflows of Resources OPEB Pension Total

Differences Between Expected and Actual

Experiences $ 128,299 $ 1,612 $ 129,911

Changes in Assumptions 153,216 80,148 233,364

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Earning on Pension Plan Investments 92,514 59,306 151,820

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between
Contributions and Proportionate Share of

Contributions - 8,927 8,927
Total 3 374,029 $ 149,993 $ 524,022
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NOTE 10 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES-CONTINUED
Difference in Expected and Actual Experience

The difference between expected and actual experience with regard to economic and
demographic factors is amortized over a five-year closed period reflecting the average
remaining service life of the plan members (active and inactive), respectively. The first
year of amortization is recognized as pension expense with the remaining years shown as
either deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources. The collective
amount of the difference between expected and actual experience for the fiscal year is
$21,698 and $129,911.

Changes in Assumptions

The change in assumptions about future economic or demographic factors or other
inputs is amortized over a five-year closed period, reflecting the average remaining
service life of the plan members (active and inactive members), respectively. The first year
of amortization is recognized as pension expense with the remaining years shown as
either a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources. The collective
amount of the difference between expected and actual experience for the fiscal year is
$103,048 and $233,364.

Net Difference between Projected and Actual Investment Earningon Pension Plan
Investments

The difference between the System's expected rate of return of and the actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments is amortized over a five-year closed period in
accordance with GASB #68 and #75. The first year of amortization is recognized as
pension expense with the remaining years shown as either a deferred outflow of resources
or a deferred inflow of resources. The collective amount of the difference between expected
and actual experience for the fiscalyearis $1,610 and $151,820.

Changes in Proportion and Differences between Contributions and Proportionate Share of
Contributions

The change in employer proportionate share is the amount of difference between
the employer proportionate shares of net pension liability in the prior year
compared to the current year. The difference between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions is the difference between the total amount of
employer contributions and the amount of the proportionate share of employer
contributions. The change in proportionate share and the difference between
employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions is amortized over
a six-year closed period for PERS and OPEB, reflecting the average remaining
service life of PERS and OPEB members (active and inactive members), respectively.
The changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and
proportionate. The changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions for the fiscal year are $111,950

and $8,927.
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NOTE 11 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The Authority reported accounts payable on its Statement of Net Position as of March 31,
2022. Accounts payable vendors are amount owed to creditors or generally on open
accounts, because of delivered goods and completed services. Accounts payable on
March 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, consisted of the following:

Primary Component
Government Unit
March-22 December-21
Accounts Payable Vendors $ 67,704 $ 75,453
Accounts Payable - Other Government 10,388 28,888
Accounts Payable - HUD 9,164 -
Total Accounts Payable $ 87,256 $ 104,341

NOTE 12 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - OTHER GOVERNMENT (PILOT PAYABLE)

Under Federal, State and local law, the Authority’s programs are exempt from income,
property and excise taxes. However, the Authority is required to make a payment in lieu
of taxes (PILOT) for the RAD housing programs in accordance with the provisions of its
Cooperation Agreement with the Borough of Highland Park. Under the Cooperation
Agreements, the Authority must pay the municipality 10% of its net shelter rent.

The total amount of PILOT payable on March 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, is
detailed below:

Primary Component
Government Unit
March-22 December-21
Balance Beginning of Year $ 7,749 $ 25,785
P.I.L.O.T. Accrued 10,388 28,888
Less Payments Made (7,749) (25,789)
Total P.I.L.O.T. Payable $ 10,388 $ 28,888
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NOTE 13 - ACCRUED EXPENSES

The Authority reported accrued expenses on its Statement of Net Position. Accrued
expenses are liabilities covering expenses incurred on or before March 31 and are
payable at some future date. Accrued liabilities on March 31, 2022, and December 31,
2021, consisted of the following:

Primary Component
Government Unit

March-22 December-21
Compensated Absences - Current Portion  $ 2,254 $ -
Accrued Wages and Payroll Taxes 5,010 5
Accrued Liabilities - Operating Cost 5 17,336
Accrued Interest Payable 2,417 21,189
Total Accrued Liabilities $ 9,681 $ 38,525

NOTE 14 - ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences are those for which employees will be paid, such as vacation and
sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that is attributable to services already
rendered and that is not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the
Authority will be accounted for in the period in which such services were rendered.

An employee may carry over unused vacation days in which the vacation days are earned
up to a maximum of 27 working days in addition to those accrued in the current fiscal
year. When an employee’s is permanently separated, the employee will be entitled to
receive a lump sum payment for any unused accumulated vacation time at current rate

of pay.

Unused sick leave may be carried to future periods, at a maximum of five (5) working
days in one fiscal year and can be used in the event of extended illness. In the event of
voluntary resignation of employment, an employee shall be entitled to be paid for one
quarter (1/4) of unused sick time based upon the average annual compensation received
during the last full year of his/her active employment prior to the effective date of
retirement. Overtime pay or other supplemental pay will not be included in the

computation.

The Authority has determined that the potential liability for accumulated vacation and
sick time is as follows:

Balance on Balance on Current
March-21 Additions Payments March-22 Portion
$ 23,469 $ 583 $ (1,550) $ 22,502 $ 2,254
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NOTE 15 - UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenues arise when resources are received by the Authority before it has legal
claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying
expenditures. Subject to ASC 606, rental payments with acceptance provisions and
future delivery commitments, wherein the Authority has not completed its obligations
under the lease, are also offset against the associated accounts receivable since the
requirements for revenue recognition have not been met. In subsequent periods, when
the Authority has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is
removed from the Statement of Net Position and the revenue is recognized. The
unearned revenue for March 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, consisted of tenants
prepaid rents.

NOTE 16 - LONG TERM DEBT
The Authority had the following notes payable as of March 31, 2022:

Primary Component
Government Unit

March-22 December-21
New Jersey Community Capital 3 440,438 $ -
Mortgage Agreement #1 - 2,510,000
Mortgage Agreement #2 - 722,378
Total Long Term Debt 440,438 3,232,378
Less Current Portion (10,156) -
Total Non Current Long Term Debt $ 430,282 $ 3,232,378

New Jersey Community Capital

As a requirement of the RAD closing, Highland Park Affordable Housing Corporation
obtained a mortgage in the amount of $473,500 with New Jersey Community Capital in
June 2018. The proceeds from the mortgage must be used in the renovations and
capital improvements to the Corporation assets in the conversion of the Low-Income
Housing Program to the RAD conversion units. The term of the mortgage is fifteen (15)
years expiring on June 1, 2033. The mortgage has a federal finance bank rate plus
3.460%. The payment schedule was based on a 25-year table requiring monthly
payments of $3,189.71 where the final payment for June 1, 2033, will be a balloon

payment.
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New Jersey Community Capital
The balance of this mortgage on March 31, 2022, is $440,438.

Balance on Balance on Current
March-20 Payments March-22 Portion
$ 448 914 $ (8,476) $ 440,438 $ (10,156)

The debt requirements as to principal reduction of the loan for long term debt until
exhausted are as follows:

March-23 $ 10,156

March-24 10,833
March-25 11,523
March-26 12,325
March-27 13,146
Subtotal 57,983
Therafter 382,455
Total $ 440,438

Component Unit — Discretely Presented
Kronman Affordable Housing LP. reported mortgage payable as of December 31, 2021
and was indebted for the following loans:

Mortgage payable dated April 4, 2019, to the NJHMFA in the original amount of

$3,450,000. The interest rate is 3.25% per annum. There is servicing fee of $1,437 that
is due and payable each month. The loan matures on May 1, 2022, and is secured by a

first mortgage on underlying land and property. The loan balance as of December 31,
2021, is $-0-.

As of April 4, 2019, Kronman Affordable Housing LP., entered into a mortgage agreement
#1 with the Authority in the amount of $2,510,000. The mortgage bears no interest and
matures in April 2049. The mortgage secured by a 27d mortgage lien on the underlying

land and property. The loan balance as of December 31, 2021, is $2,510,000.

As of April 4, 2019, Kronman Affordable Housing LP., entered into a mortgage agreement
#2 with the Authority in the amount of $722,378. The mortgage bears an interest rate of
2.20% per annum matures in April 2049. The mortgage secured by a 2nd mortgage lien

on the underlying land and property. The loan balance as of December 31, 2021, is
$722,378.
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Component Unit — Discretely Presented
The balance of this mortgage on December 31, 2021, is $3,232,378.

Balance on Balance on Current
December-20 Payments  December-21  Portion
$ 6,572,399 $ (3,340,021) $ 3,232,378 $ -

The debt requirements as to principal reduction of the loan for long term debt until
exhausted are as follows:

Mortgage Mortgage
Agreement #1 Agreement #2
December-22 $ - % -
December-23 - -
December-24 - -
December-25 - -
December-26 - .
Subtotal - -
Therafter 2,510,000 122,378
Total $ 2,510,000 $ 722,378

NOTE 17 - NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
The Highland Park Affordable Housing Corporation reported non-current liability in the
amount of $412,790 for future obligation in connection with the RAD conversion.

NOTE 18 - ACCRUED PENSION AND OPEB LIABILITIES
The Authority as of March 31, 2022, reported accrued pension and OPEB liability
amounts as follows:

March-22
Accrued OPEB Payable $ 688,970
Accrued Pension Payable 225,132
Total OPEB and Pension Payable $ 914,102

These amounts arose due to adoption of GASB #75 in 2019 year as well as GASB #68
which was adopted in 2015 year. This note will discuss the liability associated with
GASB #75, which is accrued other postemployment benefits. Note - 19 will discuss the
effect of GASB #68 and the pension liability which arose from that.
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NOTE 18 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS -CONTINUED

OPEB Liability

The Authority as of March 31, 2022, reported a net OPEB liability in the amount of
$688,970 due to GASB #75. The component of the current year net OPEB liability of the
Authority as of June 30, 2020, the last evaluation date, is as follows:

OPEB
Employer OPEBLiability $ 695,300
Plan Net Position (6,330)
Employer Net OPEB Liability $ 688,970

The Authority allocation percentage is 0.0038390% as of June 30, 2020.

OPEB Liability — Plan Description and Benefits Provided

Plan Description: The State Health Benefit Local Government Retired Employees Plan
(the Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple- employer defined benefit other postemployment
benefit (OPEB) plan with a special funding situation. It covers employees of local
government employers that have adopted a resolution to participate in the Plan. For
additional information about the Plan, please refer to the State of New Jersey (the
State), Division of Pensions and Benefits' (the Division) Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR), which can be found at

https:/ /www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtml.

Benefits Provided: The Plan provides medical and prescription drug to retirees and
their covered dependents of the participating employers. Under the provisions of
Chapter 88, P.L 1974 and Chapter 48, P.L. 1999, local government employers
electing to provide postretirement medical coverage to their employees must file a
resolution with the Division. Under Chapter 88, local employers elect to provide
benefit coverage based on the eligibility rules and regulations promulgated by the
State Health Benefits Commission.

Chapter 48 allows local employers to establish their own age and service eligibility
for employer paid health benefits coverage for retired employees. Under Chapter 48,
the employer may assume the cost of postretirement medical coverage for employees
and their dependents who:

1) retired on a disability pension; or
2) retired with 25 or more years of service credit in a State or locally

administered retirement system and a period of service of up to 25 years with
the employer at the time of retirement as established by the employer; or
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Plan Description and Benefits Provided
3) retired and reached the age of 65 with 25 or more years of service credit in a
State or locally administered retirement system and a period of service of up to
25 years with the employer at the time of retirement as established by the
employer; or

4) retired and reached age 62 with at least 15 years of service with the
employer. Further, the law provides that the employer paid obligations for
retiree coverage may be determined by means of a collective negotiation’s
agreement.

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L, 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement
medical coverage who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28,
2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in
retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The
percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be
determined based on the retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Allocation Methodology

GASB Statement No. 75 requires participating employers in the Plan to recognize their
proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability, collective deferred outflows of
resources, collective deferred inflows of resources, and collective OPEB expense. The
total OPEB liability for the year ended March 31, 2022 was $688,970.

Employees covered by benefits terms: On June 30, 2020 (the census date), the following
employees were covered by the benefits terms:

Total Plan Members 4

Net OPEB Liability

The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020, latest report, was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020.
The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan
the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Actuarial Assumptions: The total OPEB Liability in the June 30, 2020, actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
period included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation Rate = 2.21%

Salary Increases
Through 2026 = 2.00% to 6.00%
Thereafter = 3.00% to 7.00%
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Actuarial Assumptions - Continued

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Healthy
Employee Male/Female mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement
projections from the central year using the MP-2020 scale. Postretirement mortality
rates were based on the RP-2006 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Annuitant Male/Female
mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year
using the MP-2020 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2006 Headcount-
Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement
projections from the central year using the MP-2020 scale.

Certain actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020, valuation was based on the
results of the pension plans' experience studies for which the members are eligible for
coverage under this Plan - the Police and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS) and the
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). The PFRS and PERS experience studies
were prepared for the periods July 1, 2013, to June 30, 2020 and July 1, 2014 to June
30, 2020, respectively. 100% of active members are considered to participate in the Plan
upon retirement.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) and health maintenance
organization (HMO) medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a
4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. For self-insured post-65 PPO and HMO
medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend
rate is 7.5% decreasing to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. The Medicare
Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future years.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2020, was 2.21%. This represents the municipal bond
return rate as chosen by the State. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds
with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than
the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate,
rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to changes in the discount rate: The following presents
the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority’s OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(1.21%) or one percentage point higher (3.21%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
1.21% 2.21% 3.21%
Total OPEB Liability $ 814,509 $ 688,970 $ 589,596
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Sensitivity of the OPEB Liability to changes in healthcare cost trend rates: The following
presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority’s OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than current healthcare cost
trend rates than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare Cost Inflation Rate Sensitivity
1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
Total OPEB Liability $ 570,124 $ 688,970 $ 844,602

Change in Assumptions: Effective June 30, 2020.

Changes in Proportion

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflow of resources related to the changes in proportion. These amounts
should be recognized (amortized) by each employer over the average remaining service
lives of all plan members, which is 8.05, 8.14 and 8.04 year for the 2020.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) and health maintenance
organization (HMO) medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a
4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. For self-insured post-65 PPO and HMO
medical benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend
rate is 7.5% decreasing to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. The Medicare
Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future years.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2020, was 2.21%. This represents the municipal bond
return rate as chosen by the State. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds
with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than
the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate,
rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.
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Changes in Net OPEB Liability:

Total OPEB Liability 2021
Service Cost $ 23,262
Interest on Total OPEB liability 19,097
Expected Investment Return (293)
Administrative Expenses 381
Changes in Benefits Term 40
Current Period Deferred

Inflows/Outflows of Resources (21,137)
Changes in Assumptions or Other

Inputs 182,903
Net Difference Between Projected and

Actual Investments Earning on 174

Pension Plan Investments
Benefit Payments
Change in Plan -

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 204,427
Total OPEB Liability, Beginning 484,543
Total OPEB Liability, Ending $ 688,970

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expenses as follows:

Year Ending June 30, 2021 $ (37,036)
Year Ending June 30, 2022 (37,069)
Year Ending June 30, 2023 (37,123)
Year Ending June 30, 2024 (37,173)
Year Ending June 30, 2025 (25,347)
Therafter 13,866

Total $ (159,882)
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Net Pension Liability Information

The Authority as of March 31, 2022, reported a net pension liability in the amount of
$225,132 due to GASB #68. The component of the current year net pension liability of
the Authority as of June 30, 2021, the last evaluation date, is as follows:

PERS
Employer Total Pension Liability $ 766,997
Plan Net Position (541,8695)
Employer Net Pension Liability $ 225,132

The Authority allocation percentage is 0.00190004092% as of June 30, 2021.

Plan Description

The Authority participates in the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS), which is sponsored and administered by the New Jersey Division of
Pensions and Benefits. The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System
(PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the Division).

For additional information about PERS, please refer to Division's Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at
www.state.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtml.

Net Pension Liability Information

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability
provisions of PERS. The Authority participates in the State of New Jersey, Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS).

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

1) Tier 1 — Members who enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2) Tier 2 — Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior
to November 2, 2008

3) Tier 3 - Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and
prior to May 22, 2010

4) Tier 4 — Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior
to June 28, 2011

5) Tier 5 — Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011.
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Net Pension Liability Information - Continued

The local employers' contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined
rate which includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L.
2009 provided an option for local employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal
and accrued liability contribution amounts certified for payments due in State fiscal
year 2009. Such employers will be credited with the full payment and any such
amounts will not be included in their unfunded liability.

The actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement systems, by
employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability contributions provided under
this law. This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments
over a period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June
30, 2012, and will be adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets.

Allocation Percentage Methodology

Although the Division administers one cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, separate (sub) actuarial valuations are prepared to determine the
actuarial determined contribution rate by group. Following this method, the
measurement of the collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense excluding that attributable to
employer-paid member contributions are determined separately for each individual
employer of the State and local groups of the plan.

To facilitate the separate (sub) actuarial valuations, the Division maintains separate
accounts to identify additions, deductions, and fiduciary net position applicable to
each group. The allocation percentages presented for each group in the schedule of
employer allocations are applied to amounts presented in the schedules of pension
amounts by employer. The allocation percentages for each group as of June 30, 2021,
are based on the ratio of each employer's contributions to total employer contributions
of the group for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021.

The contribution for PERS is set by NJSA 43:15A and requires contributions by active
members and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is
contributed by the State. The State’s pension contribution is based on an actuarially
determined amount, which include the employer portion of the normal cost and an
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group
insurance benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2021 the State’s
pension contribution was less than the actuarial determined amount.
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for June 30, 2021, measurement dates were determined by
using an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020, with update procedures used to roll
forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2021. The actuarial valuations used
the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00-6.00%, based on age
Thereafter 3.00-7.00%, based on age
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median
Income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a
generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4%
adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement
rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for
females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational
basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2020.

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2021) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of Pensions
and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of
return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.
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Actuarial Assumptions — Continued

Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in

PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021, as summarized in the following
table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 8.09%
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 13.50% 8.71%
Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 10.96%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.30%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.15%
Real Assets 3.00% 7.40%
High Yield 2.00% 3.75%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.60%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.68%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 0.95%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.35%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June
30, 2021. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the non-employer
contributing entity will be based on 100% of the actuarially determined
contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined
contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on plan investments was applied to all projected benefit payments in
determining the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption

The following presents the current-period net pension liability of the employers
calculated using the current-period discount rate assumption of 7.0% percent, as well as
what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1 percentage-point lower (6.0% percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.0% percent)
than the current assumption (in thousands). Sensitivity of the Authority’s proportionate
share of the Net Pension Liability due to change in the Discount Rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Authority's Proprortionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 154,926 $ 225,132 §. 63,069

Collective Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
(excluding employer specific amounts) related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30, 2022 $ (63,121)
Year Ending June 30, 2023 (37,929)
Year Ending June 30, 2023 (25,861)
Year Ending June 30, 2025 (19,440)
Year Ending June 30, 2026 8

Total $ (136,343)

Changes in Proportion

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to changes in proportion. These amounts
should be recognized (amortized) by each employer over the average of the expected
remaining service lives of all plan members, which is 5.13, 5.16, 5.21, 5.63, 5.48 and
5.57 years for the 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, and 2016 amounts, respectively.
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NOTE 19 - ACCRUED PENSION LIABILITY - CONTINUED

Pension Expense

The components of allocable pension expense, which exclude pension expense

related to specific liabilities of individual employers, for the plan fiscal year ending

June 30, 2021, are as follows:

Service Cost
Interest on the Total Pension Liability
Benefits Changes
Member Contributions
Administrative Expenses
Expected Investment Return Net of Investment Expen
Pension Expense Related to Specific Liabilities
of Individual Employers
Current Period Recognition (Amortization) of Deferred
Outflows and Inflows of Resources:
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experien
Changes of Assumptions
Differences Between Projected and Actual Investm
Earnings on Pension Plan Investments

13,167
51,741

(10,712)
187
(28,228)
(132)
1,450

(39,275)

(18,730)

Total
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 20 - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

This component consists of land, construction in process and depreciable assets, net of
accumulation and net of related debt outstanding. If there are significant unspent
related debt proceeds as of year-end, the portion of the debt related to the unspent
proceeds is not included in the calculation of investment in Net Investment in Capital
Assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net asset component as
the unspent proceeds.

Primary Component
Government Unit

March-22 December-21
Balance Beginning of Year $ 105,738 $ (611,031)
Fixed Assets Additions 41,490 -
Payment of Debt 8,476 3,340,021
Depreciation Expense (70,476) (157,953)
Ending Balance $ 85,228 $ 2 571,037

NOTE 21 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION

The Authority’s Restricted Net Position account balance on March 31, 2022, is $208,637
and the component unit as of December 31, 2021, is $872,157. The balance is as
follows:

Primary Component
Government Unit

March-22 December-21
HCV Program HAP Reserves $ 37,274 $ =
Rehab Escrow Reserves - RAD 171,363 -
Operating Reserve Deficit Account - 340,518
Repalacement Reserve Account - 129,600
Reserve Funds - 402,039
Total Restricted Net Position $ 208,637 $ 872,157

In connection with the New Jersey Community Capital mortgage (Note 16), the RAD units
are required to maintain certain escrow accounts and reserves. In accordance with the
bank loan, the restricted deposited and funded reserves are held by New Jersey
Community Capital in the amount of $171,363.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 21 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION -CONTINUED

Housing Choice Voucher Program - Reserves

The restricted cash in the amount of $37,274 was reported under the Housing Choice
Voucher Program as a HAP reserve for future use. In accordance with HUD’s PIH Notice
2007-03, the reserve fund balance may only be used to assist additional families up to
the number of units under contract.

Housing Choice Voucher Program HUD Held Reserves Funds

Effective January 1, 2012, HUD was required to control the disbursement of funds in
such a way that the Authority does not receive funds before they are needed, resulting in
the re-establishment of HUD held program reserves to comply with the Treasury
requirements. HUD held reserve is a holding account at the HUD level that maintains
the excess of HAP funds that have been obligated (ABA) but undisbursed to the
Authority. The excess HAP funds will remain obligated but not disbursed to the
Authority. HUD will hold these funds until needed by the Authority. The amount of
HUD held reserves for the Authority on March 31, 2022, was $422,023.

NOTE 22 - UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION
The Authority’s Unrestricted Net Position and the component unit account balance on
March 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, is as follows:

Component
Business HCV ADM Unit
Activities Reserve December-21 Total
Balance - Beginning $ 1,315,862 $ (220) $ 2,112,188 $ 3,427,830
Increase During the Year - 56,731 - 56,731
Decrease for the Year (23,009) - (1,660,186) (1,683,195)
Prior Period Adjustment 37,148 - - 37,148
Ending Balance $ 1,330,001 $ 56,511 $ 452,002 $ 1,838,514

NOTE 23 - ANNUAL CONTRIBUTIONS BY FEDERAL AGENCIES

Annual Contributions Contracts for the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program to
provide for housing assistance payments to private owners of residential units on behalf
of eligible low or very low-income families. The programs provide for such payment with
respect to existing housing covering the difference between the maximum rental on a
dwelling unit, and the amount of rent contribution by the participating family and
related administrative expense. HUD contributions for the Section 8 Housing Choice
Voucher for March 31, 2022, were $2,266,976.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 24 - CURRENT VULNERABILITY DUE TO CERTAIN CONCENTRATIONS

The Authority operations are concentrated in the low-income housing real estate market.
In addition, the Authority operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of
the Authority are subject to the administrative directives, rules, and regulations of
federal, state, and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to HUD. Such
administrative directives, rules, and regulations are subject to change by an act of
congress, or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes may occur with
little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional
administrative burden, to comply with a change.

Total financial support by HUD was $2,266,976 to the Authority which represents
approximately 93% percent of the Authority's primary government total revenue for the
year ended March 31, 2022.

NOTE 25 -CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

In April 2019, the Authority converted all its 124 Public Housing units to Project Based
Vouchers under the RAD Program. The RAD program regulations require a separate
entity administer the housing assistance payments contract, which will be the Authority.
This required the Authority to make an investment in the Highland Park Affordable
Housing Corporation and the Kronman Affordable Housing LP. in which the Authority is
a managing member in the Kronman Affordable Housing LP. and owns Highland Park
Affordable Housing Corporation

NOTE 26 - LEASING ACTIVITIES

On April 4, 2019, the Authority entered into a ground lease agreement with a Developer
for the purpose of constructing a 100 dwelling rental unit, known as the Kronman
Affordable Housing LP. The base rent shall be $1.00 per annum, payable at the signing
of the agreement. The term of the lease is 75 years, unless sooner termination in
accordance with the provisions of the lease.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 27 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park is deemed to have controlling
interest in the Kronman Affordable Housing LP. and Highland Park Affordable Housing
Corporation.

Development Fee

Kronman Affordable Housing LP. entered into a development fee agreement with the
managing member. Payment of the development fee is subject to the terms and
conditions of the development agreement, the development fee note, and the partnership
agreement. As of March 31, 2022, the development fee earned was $375,000 with an
outstanding balance of $149,020 as of March 31, 2022.

Management Fee

Kronman Affordable Housing LP. entered into agreement with the managing member for
a management fee of $65 per unit per month to the General Partner for the year ended
December 31, 2021, the management fee earned was $70,928. Starting in January
2020, the Partnership will pay a property management fee of 8.40% of gross receipts.

Operating Expenses

For administrative and economic efficiency purposes, the Authority maintains a
centralized payroll system and employee benefits program for all of the Authority
employees. The Kronman Affordable Housing LP. and Highland Park Affordable Housing
Corporation is charged for administrative and maintenance salaries with related payroll
expenses. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the following expenses were charged:

Highland Park Kronman
Affordable Housing Affordable Housing
Corporation Limited Partnership
Administrative Salaries $ 5,620 $ 27,390
Maintenance Salaries 19,367 83,973
Employee Benefits 9,351 60,340
Total Cost $ 34,338 $ 171,703

NOTE 28 - RECLASSIFICATION
The Authority needed to make a prior period adjustment to adjust the opening balance to
the pension payable amount of June 30, 2020, in the amount of 37,148.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 29 - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Litigation — On March 31, 2022, the Authority was not involved in any threatened
litigation.

Contingencies

The Authority is subject to possible examinations made by federal and state authorities
who determine compliance with terms, conditions, laws, and regulations governing other
grants given to the Authority in the current and prior years. There were no such
examinations for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Other Insurance

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; injuries to employees; errors and omissions; natural disasters; etc.
These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent third
parties. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage for the past three years.

Unemployment Insurance

The Authority provides unemployment insurance through direct billings from the New
Jersey Unemployment Insurance Fund. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the
Authority paid no benefits from the unemployment reserve. On March 31, 2022, the
Authority did not recognize a liability for unpaid, unasserted claims, if any, as these
would be deemed immaterial.

National Health Emergency

The United States is presently during a national health emergency related to the
COVID-19 virus (coronavirus). The overall consequences of coronavirus on a national,
regional and local level are unknown, but has the potential to result in a significant
economic impact. On 'March 27, 2020, the President of the United States signed the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act into law to provide
additional funding to Public Housing Authority’s to prevent, prepare for and respond to
coronavirus, including to maintain normal operations during the period the program was
impacted. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Authority received $73,727 in total
CARES Act funding of which $-0- was unspent. The overall impact of this situation on
the Authority and its future results and financial position is not presently determinable.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2022

NOTE 30 - GROUND LEASE

Kronman Affordable Housing LP, a component unit, entered into a ground lease with the
Authority which commenced in April 2019. Ground lease payments are due annually in
the amount of $21,818, escalating annually at 3% per annum until April 2118,

Future minimum ground lease payments will be received over the next five years ending
March 31 and thereafter are as follows:

March-23 $ 24,934
March-24 25,682
March-25 26,452
March-26 27,246
March-27 28,063
Therafter 2,901,977
Total $ 3,034,354

NOTE 31 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Coronavirus Pandemic:

In December 2019, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) originated in
Wuhan, China and has since spread to other countries, including the U.S. On March 11,
2022, the World Health Organization characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic.

The severity of the impact of COVID-19 on the Authority operations will depend on
several factors, including, but limited to, the duration and severity of the pandemic and
the extent and severity of the impact on the Authority’s tenants, employees and vendors,
all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. The Authority’s future results could
be adversely impacted by delays in rent collections. Management is unable to predict
with absolute certainty the impact of COVID-19 on its financial conditions, results of
operations or cash flows.

Events that occur after the statement of net position date but before the financial
statements were available to be issued, must be evaluated for recognition or disclosed.
The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed after
the statement of net position date required disclosure in the accompanying notes.
Management has evaluated the activity of the Authority thru December 2, 2022; the date
which the financial statements were available for issue and concluded that no
subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial
statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note 1. Presentation:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal
award activity of the Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park is under
programs of the federal government for the year ended March 31, 2022. The information
in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Housing Authority of the
Borough of Highland Park, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, change in net position, or cash flow of the Housing Authority of the Borough of
Highland Park.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.

Note 3. Indirect Cost Rate
The Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park has not elected to use the 10
percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowable under the Uniform Guidance.

Note 4. Loans Outstanding:

The Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park had $440,438 as a loan balance
outstanding on March 31, 2022. Note 16 presented on pages 46-47 of this report have
full disclosure regarding the loan activity.

Note 5. Non- Cash Federal Assistance:
The Authority did not receive any non-cash Federal assistance for the year ended March

31, 2022.

Note 6. Sub recipients:
Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule above, the Housing Authority of

the Borough of Highland Park did not provide federal awards to any sub recipients.

72



€L

ainjonijselju] g9l

mmm._mol_n_ ul uononiisuo) /91

6/8°CeE' L $- 6/8'C€€L$- 9Ly /$- 268'866%- L1G'99€$- uoneloaideq palEINWNISY 99l
sjuswanoidw| pjoyases g9l

S06'08$ G06'08% 169'8L$ v12'29% uoljeljsiujWpy - Aisuiyoe |y g Juswdinb3 ‘ainuing 9|
2/1'eels Cc/L'EELS 0S8'9L1L$ 22e9Ls sbuiemg - Alsuiyoe @ uswdinb3 ‘ainjiuing €9|
111'62v'1$ L1)'6CTv'L$ €/1'9/2'1$ : ¥09'€Sl'9% sbulpjing 9}
901'81$ 901 '8L$ 90L'8L$ pueq Lgl
vZe'GL8'YS | €60°9€€Cs- | LLY'LSL LS 0% 165'L5¥$ ¥00'9L2'G$ : 9L8'LIVLS 0% sjassy jualng [ejo| QS|
S|eg 10} p|oH s}essy Gyl

wol4 ang Em;mogn_ 1B_BIU| Pyl

SSLIOJUBAU| 8}8|0SqQ JO) BoUBMO|lY L'SL

S3LIOJUBAU| €L

91/'8€$ 91.'8€$ 006$ £86'6% €€8°/2% sjossy JaYJQ pue sasuadxg pledald gl
3___Qm_|_ jualng jo Ew:.;mn_ 10j pajol}say - SJUBWISBAU| GE |

poloulsay - sjuswisaAaul zgl

pajouysalun - sjuswisaAu] LgL
. \ . . . . P i i SJUNOJY
¥86'986'L$ i €60'9€€'C$- | L.0'€Ce'vS 0% 0% 9z9'6LE'v$ LSr'e$ 0% INBANO(] Jo} SSOUBMOIY 4O JON. ‘SIBAIZ08Y €101 O7L
9]|qeAI0aY }salslu| paniody /2L

0% 0% 0% pne. - SJuUnoJdy |nJqno( Joj aduemolly '8zl
LES'LS LES'LS LES'LS Alanooay pnel4 gzL
juaung - s|qeAlsday sebebuoly g ‘sueo 'seloN /ZL

0$ 0% 0% JayjQ - SJUN0JJY |NJigno(g 1o} SOUBMO|Y Z'9ZL
v6v'ves- veY ves- Y6y ves- 0$ Sjueus | - SJUN0JJY INignoQ 1o} SoUEMO|lY |L'9Z]
65€'9€$ 6GE'9€S 806'2€$ LGy'c$ SJUBUS | - 9|qBAISD9Y SJUNOJJY 9z |
88G'C/6'L$ | €60'9¢€'C$- i 189'60EVS 1 89'60€ ' v$ SNOBUEY|3TSI|A - S|qBAIS09Y SJUNOJDY GZ|
JUSWUISA09) JBUIQ - 3|qBAIS03Y SIUN0DY HZL

sjo8lold JaYl0 dNH - 2|geAIs08Y SJUN0d2Y 77|

s108[01d WYHdJ - 9|qBAI823Y SJUN02dY LZ|

¥29'68.'C$ 0% ¥29'68/.'2$ 0% /69'9G61$ G6€£'988% eSOV LS 0$ yseQ [ejoL 00l
TlY'LS [A 4% Clr'LS Sallligel] JuaLng Jo JUSWABY 10} PajoLisay - Ysed Gl
€2/'28% TANATS 79521 $ 651 '0v$ slisodag Ajunoag jueus] - ysey L
¥6.'080°L$ ¥6.'080°L$ {ZXAVRS €9E'LLLS 151°2/8% pajolIsay syl - ysey ¢l|
JuswdojeAsq pue UOIeZIUISPO - PaIOLISaY - USBD) ZL 1

GE9'VGO'L S GEQ'PGO'LS LGB LIS 89¥'20.$ 9LC'vES$ pajolisaIun - ysey ||

BuIpUn.{ SIBUSHOA Aj818i58i(]
[ejoL NE! [ejolgng PvY .wmm<o AL SSHAROY “wen [e30] j08fouid
i BuisnoH ssauisng | i jusuodwo) :
AOH Q0HvL LI L (g
CZ0T/LE/E0 pUT IBAA [BOSIH upny sBuis/peypny :adA| uoissiwgng

Arewwng jeays asuejeg apip fug

N "MYVYd ANV THOIH

(P#OrN) Aoyiny BuisnoH sued pueybiy




v.

06.CL¥$ 9G1'6EC$- 9v6'159% 06.CL¥$ 9G1'6£¢$ 49UJQ - sal}ljigel JusLnd-uoN ¢€G¢
099'299'c$ 099'299'c$ 28¢'0Ev$ 8/€'ceC’'c$ sbuimoliog buiesadQ - uaung Jo 19N ‘1geq wis)-buo zse
SHUSASY SBEBIIG|/S158161g
jejden - juaung jo 19N 1geq wue-buoy Lge
€65 'v0c$ 0% €6S'70€$ 0% 292'v/$ 16€'S$ vE6'v8LS 0% sajljiger juaung |ejo] QLE
uaung - Ajijiger] ueo gye
0] anq - welboid 1BW| /pE
9ee'/1$ oce'LL$ 9ee'/1$ 43Y1Q - sanIjiqel] paniddy gy¢
saljijiqerT Jusung) 1BYl0 She
. i . Sblimeiiog
951 018 951'0L$ 951 0L$ Bunesed() - 199 W.s}-BU0T JO UOILO UBLIND bHE
BHUBASY SBEDLO[ 858014
[eyden - 199 wis}-BuoT JO UoILod Jusuny epe
LL6'LS L16'L$ 0$ Z$ 606'L$ SNUSABY pausesun zye
€cL'es$ €2.'2S$ ¥9G'cLS 651 '0v$ sjisodaQg AJUnoag Jueus] |p¢
9/2'6€$ 9/2'6€$ 88c'0L$ 888'8¢$ JuswuIBA0g) JBY)Q - d|qehed SUNOJDY £E€
s}08(01d YHd - 9|geAed JUun0o2Y Zgee
v9L'6$ 79L'6$ ¥91'6$ swelbold YHd dNH - S|qeAed sjunoddy |ee
909'cC$ 909'cc$ AR AAS 68l°12$ d|qeded }saielu| paniody Gze
Ajljiger Aousbunuo) psniody ze
vS2'c$ ¥SC'c$ €513 L08'L$ uonlod jualing - saouasqy pajesuadwo) paniody gze
0L0'S$ 0L0'G$ LLS 662 13 |qeed saxe] |joJAed/abepy paniody Lze
an( 1sed sAeq 06< a|qeAed sjunodoy €L
LSLerl$ LSL'EYLS ¥€6°'€9$ 0..'€$ €G51'G/$ sAeq 0g => 8|qeAed Sjunoddy zLe
yelpjaaQ yueg LLg
886'€Ly'LL$ | €609¢€'Cs- ¢ 180'0SL'ELS 0% 199'6£5$ Q06'/68'G$ i 80S'CLE'L$ 0% S32IN0S3Y JO MOINQ paliaja pue sjessy [BJ0] 062
90€'8¢2$ 90€£'8€C$ G58'0.$ LS¥'L91$ S32IN0S8Y JO MOIINQ pauiajag 00C
85€'09¢'9% 0$ 86€'09¢'9% 0$ GLZ'LLS LS¥'v1G$ 269'7€8'GS 0$ S]SSSY Jualin)-UON |BJo| 08l
SBINUBA JUIOP Ul SJUBWIISBAU| 9/ |
L12°1ES LLT'LES LlT'1ES Sjessy Jsulo /1L
JUB1IND UON - S|gBAISI3Y SIURIS) €/|
SHEI8E]
- Juaing UoN - s|geAlnday sabebuo|y R 'sueo 'ssloN /1
JUB1IND-UON - 9|qeAleday sabebuopy pue sueoT ‘seloN L/ |
180'6¢€'9% 0% 180'62€'9$ 0$ SLZ'LLS LGY'v1G$ GL'€08'GH 0$ uoneroaidag paje|nwnody 4o JaN ‘sjessy [eyde) [ejol 09l
— SISUBHOA Ajs18158i(
lejo) W3 [e103qn iy =il SRR “Hin ej01 oslol
S o mmw?ﬁ Buisnoy ssauisng | | jusuodwo) e
AOH JDJH'tL LIg YL L9

¢C0C/LE/E0 PUZ 13 [eOSIS

upny 8|Buis/paypny 8dA| uoissiwgng

Arewwing j9ayg asuejeg apipm Anug

FN "M¥Vd ANVIHOIH

(##OrN) Aoyiny Buisnoy yied puejybiy




G

._ —— —— : i - BN KBS
886'CLY'LLS | €60'9EE'CS L80'0S.°ELS 0% 1/99'6£5$ 906°.68'G$ 80SCLe' LS 0$ DUB $92IN0S3} 10 SMOJU| paLead ‘Seliliger [B10] 009
£/G'G/5'6$ 0$ €/G'G/G'G$ 0% 000's0L$ 0/¥'LL6'ES €01'655'1$ 0% uonisod / s}assy JeN - Ainb3 [ejo| ¢1g
716'8e8°'L$ 71G'8€8'1$ 0% 11G'9S$ #60'999'c$ 160'788'1$- 0% uonisod JaN pajouisalun v'gLs
¥6/.'080°'L$ ¥6.'080°'L$ v12'1€$ €oe'L/1$ 151'C/8% uolisod }oN psjolisey 711G
G92'959'C$ G9Z'959'C$ SLZ'LLS €10'v/$ /€0°L/G'C$ sjessy [ejide) Ul jusw)sanu| 19N #'805
220'v2S$ 220'v2ss A WEAR 016'96€$ $32IN0SaYy JO MO|jU| pallsjad 00V
€6EVLE'GE § €60'9E€'2S- | 98Y'0S9°/L$ 0% GGG'20€$ 9¢5'68S'L$ S0v'eS.'G$ 0% saljljigelT [ejol 00¢
008'600'G$ i £60'9E€'2$- i €68'GYE LS 0$ €62'€eC$ 6CL'vPS'LS L/¥'895'G$ 0% SaljljiqelT jualin)-UoN [e}o] 0GE
20L'v1L6$ 20L'v1L6$ 8¥Z'6¢c$ #58'789% sallljigel] 9340 pue uoisusd paniody /G¢
Saljijiqer] g gSv4 9G¢
0% 1€6'960'¢$- | /£6'960'C$ 1/€6'960'C$ Jualing UON - Aljiqer] ueo] SGe
8¥2'0¢$ 812'0¢$ SPO'v$ €02'91$ JusLIND UON - $80U8sqy pajesuadwo) paniody #Ge
Bur SISUSHOA B ET e [e]
lejo RE! llolans | 10 -y SoloUg SORIARY “Hin ej0] 10801
v wm_w_<.o Buisnoy ssauisng | jusuodwo) IF101. 398i01d
AOH JDOHVL LIS bl L'

CC0C/LE/E0 puUT Jes, |edsld
Arewwns j99yg asuejeg apipp Ajug

N "MYVd ANVIHOIH

upny 8|buig/paypny :adA| uoissiwgng

(b¥OrN) Auoyiny BuisnoH ied puejybiH




9.

salle|eg - S80IAI9S JUBUS |

00126

99 Juswabeuey 19ssY

000¢6

6S) ¥¥SS$

0%

651 vS$

0%

601'802$

99'z8%

L TATAS

0%

aAlensIuIWpY - buneladQ |e10]

00016

Jaulo

00616

peayIsAnQ paledo|ly

0L816

=M

008l6

C65'LSS

Z65°15$

198'7$

959'1$

690'SV$

asuadx3 [ebaT

00.L6

PE6'VLES

YE6V.LES

6S8°'c9L$

G/G'€9$

00S'LpL$

sasuadx3 a0

00916

€85'6Z$

£85'G¢$

€16'2$

GzS'z$

G80°GL$

SAIBJ]SIUIWPY - SUORNQLIUOD Jjausg aakoidw]

00516

Bunse pue buisiuaApy

00vL6

994 buideay-yoog

oLELB

99 Juswabeuepy

00€L6

G9e'/e$

G9e'/€$

GE0'0L$

060'6$

ovZ'8Ls

$994 bupipny

0ocle

G89'vG$

GB89'VSS

G/9'Lc$

029'S$

06€'22$

salle|es aAlelSIuIWpY

00L16

Lv.'/€2'G%

6..°871$-

02S'98¢€'G$

lgl'el$

TARAA4S

£88'50€$

19.'v08'¢$

0%

anusAay |ejo ]|

0000.

0¢$

0zZ$

0z$

PaJol1)Say - SWODU| JUSLISSAU|

000c.

s1essy |ejide) Jo ajes UO SSOT 10 ules

009LL

G/0'06.°L$

G/0'062'L$

0ze'L$

G58'88/°LS

anuaAay Jayj0

00SL.

9v6'9$

9v6'9$

ov6'9$

Aanooay pnel4

00vLL

s}essy J0 9|eg 40 1509

OLELL

s|es 10} p|oH s1assYy Jo uonisodsiq Woly Spassoid

00€LL

awoou| }salaju| abebuoy

00cL.

919'c$

919'z$

¥56°'L$

895¢

6%

P3)olISaIUN - SWODU| JUSW}SOAU|

00LLL

SJUBIS) JUSWIUIBAOS) J18Y10

00804

0%

0%

0%

anuaAay 834 [Blo|

00.0L

s8a84 Jay10

05202

994 90IAI8G BUIT JUOI 4

0¥.0L

994 buidaay| yoog

0€.0L

994 Juswabeuey 19SSy

0c/0L

994 Juawabeuey

01202

sjuels) [ende)

01902

9/6'99¢'c$

9/6'992'¢$

LTL'ELS

6vC'e6L '

sjuel bunesadQ YHd ANH

0090Z

80L°LLLLS

6..'8Y1$-

188'61€'L$

0$

0$

S/0'v0c$

cL8'slo'Ls

0$

anuaAay JUeus] [e10]

0050Z

J3YJO - aNUBASY JuBUS |

00¥0L

80L'LLL'LS

6LL'8Y1$-

/88'6LE'LS

5/0'%0c$

ZL8'6l0'1$

aNUaASY [eJUSY JUBUS | 19N

00€0.

[eloL

WIT3

[ejolgns

Buipuny

RV S34VO
ADH OOH'vL

ST8USHOA
3210YyD
BuisnoH
LI8YL

SoNIAOY
ssouisng |

AjBI8I58I
-lun
jusuodwo)
1’9

|ejo] 109loid

¢C0C/LE/E0 PUT Jed, |edsld

Arewwing asuadx3 pue anuaAay apipm Aiug

N ‘"MYVd ANV IHOIH
(¥¥0rN) Auouiny BuisnoH ed puejybiy

npny a|buig/paypny :8dA | uoissiwgng




Ll

199'¢L$ 199'C1L$ ¥6.'L1% £/8% Sjusy jueus] -1qgap peg 00¥96
9/2'6¢$ 9/2'6¢$ 88¢'0L$ 888'8¢$ SoXe] Jo nal ul sjusWAed 00£96
€£859% €8G$ €85% S90USasqy pajesuadwo) (OLZ96
1G9'Go$ 1G9'G9% 20e'6% 6v¢'95$ sasuadx3 [eJausn) Jayl0 00796
2¢S0's0L$ 0% 2¢S0'S0L$ 0% ¥96'¢$ VARAVAR:S 1/8'v83% 0% swniwald souelnsul |eJo| 00196
aouensu| JsyiQ |Iv 0¥196
208'6¢$ 208'62$ ¥96'C$ 129'G$ L12'1es uollesuadwio) S,USWYION 0EL96
6£8'9¢$ 6£8'92$ 129'G$ A4S aouelnsu| Ajljiqer] 02196
LLy'8ps LLy'8Y$ G/6'G$ oey'ch$ aouelinsu| Auadold 0L 196
0% 0% 0$ 0$ 0$ 0% 0$ 0% S3DIAISS BAlJ03)0ld [€]JO] 00056
S80IAIBS BAI03)01d - SUOINQLIUOY Jijausg sakoldWiy 00sSE
J8UJQ - S80IAIBS BAISSI0Id 00ESH
S1S07) J0BJUOD JBUYIQ - S8JIAISS SANY310Id 00256
10geT - Sa2IAIag BAI3810Id 0016
180°LLES 0$ 180°LLES 0$ 0% 0S1'06$ L€6'0CC$ 0$ SJUEUSJUIBIA [BJO] 000V6
_ : _ _ SHUBUSTUIBH]
180°CS$ 180°CS$ 9¢8'9$ §6¢ Sv$ Aeuipi() - suonnquiuos) Jeuag askoldwa 00SYE
681L6L1% 68L'6LL% G6£'86$ ¥6.'09% sjoeJjuog suoljesadQ pue souBuSUIBN AlRUIPIO 00EY6
: . ‘ . I8y}
b1y 9ES LLy'OES ¢95'S$ 606 0€$ pue sjeusie|y - suoeiad() pue asueusjuIRl AIBUIPIO oomﬁ%
ove'eoL$ ore'eoL$ /9€'6L% €/6'c8% Joge - suoneladQ pue aoueusjuiey Aleulpl0 00L¥6
16€'2TTH 0% 16€'cees 0% 0% 9L¥'1G$ 186'0/L$ 0$ sajiiin |eyol 000€6
RARE AR L2L'L$ asuadx3 sanin JaYl0 008E6
saniN - suolinquiuoY Jyeusyg ashkoldws 0086
Sv6'ce$ Gv6'cT$ 8¢y’ /$ /1G'9L$ 12M3S 009¢6
Jogen 00SE6
8N4 00vE6
0/v'8L$ 0/v'8L% 880'¢L$ 28¢€'9% SE9 00€E6
0r0'erL$ 0v0'erL$ 96G'0L$ ¥81'9Z1$ Aouos|3 002E6
128'GES 128'ses €CC'vL$ 865123 18JEAA 00LEB
6¢L'€/$ 0% 6CL'cL$ 12.'€l$ 0% [4 0% 0$ S3JIAISS Jueus] [eJo] 00SZ6
6¢.'€l$ 6¢L'el$ 12.'€l$ [4] 48Y]Q - SIJIAISS JueUs | (Q0¥Z6
S8O|AI9G JUBUS | - SUORNQIUCY) Jjauag eskojdiig 00sz6
S}S0) uoneooley 00CZ6
SISUSHOA AB18I58i¢
lejol IRE! |ejoans B@c_mum”_mmo o010u i ~in |ejo] jo8loid
. Buisnoy ssauisng | | jusuodwo) :
ADH DOH'¥L LISbL L9

CC0C/LE/EQ ‘PUT JEBA |BOSIH

upny s|buis/peypny adA| uolssiwgng

Arewwwng ssuadx3 pue anuaAay apip Aug

PN ‘MYVd ANV IHOIH

(r¥OrN) Aouyiny BuisnoH sjed puejybiH




8.

03

0%

0%

0$

0%

0%

03

0%

(sesn) s921n0g buioueuly JaylQ |80 |

0oLoL

NQO - welbold pue 93[o1d Usamiaq siajsuel |

76001

u| - 199014 pue welibold usamyaq siajsuel |

€6001

INQ J3jsuel] yse) ssaox3] Joslold Jou)

¢6001

u| Jajsuel] yses ssaox3 joaloid Jaju)

L6001

(sso/ures 1oN) swayj [e1oads

08001

SSOT/UleD) JoN ‘swa)| Aleuipioeixg

0,00}

sajeg Auadold Wwolj spasoold

09001

spuog pue SUeoT 'S8}ON WOl SPesdoid

0S00}

Hun Jusuodwo) oywoly sigysuel) buneladp

01001

JUsWUIBA0S) Alewlld O)/wol) siajsuel] buneladp

0€00L

INQO Jeysuely bunesadp

0200}

u| Jajsuel] buneladQ

0L00L

6G6'CCL'€S

6.L'871$-

8€.°'1/8'e$

LTl'els

[AATANAS

68€'29¢E$

Z0r'90L'L$

0%

sasuadx3 |ejo]

00006

asuadx3 juay syun buljjamg

008.6

SpUN4 [ejUSWUIBA0D) - JuswAed [edidulld 1984

00..6

Spun4 [EJUBWIUIBAOS) - sABRNQ [elde)

009.6

$9SS07 pnel4

00S/6

9€0'LECS

9€0'1€2$

8c.'c$

8€/.'99¢

09G'091$

asuadx3 uoneoaidaq

00v.6

ul-Ajiiqenod dvH

0S€.L6

Sbi'GS6'L$

6.L'8¥L$-

veC 0L 'S

v2C'v0L'C$

sjusWwAed aouUe)sissy buisnoH

00€.6

pazijeyded-uop - sasso Ajjense)n

00¢/6

aoueusjulepy Aleulpioeix]

00L/.6

€92'10L'e$

6.L'8¥1$-

Zr0'0s8'e$

0%

168'086'L$

zez'oLs

616'858'L$

0%

§58UBaXS

Bunesedq Jono anusnay BuneladQ Jo sssoxg

000/6

8/1'9€G’L$

0%

8/V'9€S'L$

lel'el$

85z'Lcecs

1G9'66C$

Zr8'Gr6$

0$

sasuadx3 bunesadQ [e1o |

00696

£88'191$

0$

€88°'191%

0%

0%

8Lz'zeS

599'6¢L$

0%

1500 UoNezIpowY pue asuadx3 }salsiu) [e1o |

00/96

SJS0) 8NSS| puog JO UoheZIoWY

0€.96

(wia] BuoT pue poys) s|geAed SaJON UO 1SaI)U|

0¢/96

£88'L91¢

€88'19L$

8Lz'zes

G99'6CL$

a|qeAed (spuog 1o) abebuo|y Jo jsaiayu|

01296

LL1'8LL$

0%

LL'8L1S

0%

G88'6$

Z8L'ces

0LL'98%

0$

sosuadxg |elausg) 18UiQ [E10 |

00096

9suadx3 aouelanag

00896

13Yi0 -193p peq

00996

sabebuol - 1gep peg

00596

[ejoL

WIn3

[ejoians

Buipun4
PV S3HVO
ADH DOH'vL

SiBUSHGA
3010YyD
BuisnoH
L/8'¥L

S9NIARDY
ssauisng |

WEEelq]
-jun
jusuodwo)
1’9

[ejo jo8lold

¢c0e/LE/E0

pug JesA |eosi

Ipny 8|Buis/paypny
Arewwng asuadx3 pue anuaaay opim Alnug

PN ‘MYVd ANV IHOIH
(#70rN) Aouiny BuisnoH yued puejybiy

:adA] uoissiwugng




64

0$ 0% 0$ spund lojoe4 buisnoH juswade|dsy LO6EL

0% 0% 0% sjuswhed a21M9S 1980 44D OLSEL

0% 0$ 0$ saseyaind ainjonyselju] 099l |

0% 0$ 0$ saseyaind sjuswanoidw| pjoysases 059l |

0% 0$ 0% S9SBYIINd SAjelsIuIWpY - Juswdinb3 3 ainjuind o9l L

0$ 0$ 0% saseyaind bujjjamq - Juswdinb3 3 ainuing 09l |

0$ 0$ 0$ saseyoind bulpjing 0z9oL L

0% 0% 0% SSSBYaind pueq QL9L|

0$ 0% 0$ ysed sseox3 0/cll
[As1A Y 0 [AstA4 0 GEBT 1.2 98L1L 0 paseaT SYJUOIA JUN JO JaquNN 0OLZLL
e|Wi4 0 9l/ly 0 8¢cCE 88¢ 00clL 0 9|gE|leAy SUIUON JIUN 06LLL
v1c'/e$ v12'/e$ vic'/e$ AInb3 syuswAed soue)sissy buisnoH 08l 11
9¢/'/9% 9¢/'19% 9¢/'/9% Aynb3 e84 sAnensiuiwpy 0/L11
J3yjO - SjUNo22Y |NignoQ Joj aduemo||y ul sebueud ool L L

SJUSY BUIjeAG

- SJUN0YJY INIGNO(] IO} 8oUBMO|Y Ul sabueyn 060LL

Angen syyeusg souelanag/wia] [eoads ui sabueyy Q8oL L

Ajjger] uonisuel | uoisuad paziubooaiun ui ssbueyy 0oLl

aoueleg Ajjigel] Jusbuiuo) ul ssbueyy 9ol |

aouejeg aoussqy psjesuadwo) ul sabueyd 0col |

) : : §16115jo liGij531i6%

8L LES 8L LES 0$ 03 8yl LES pue siajsuel| AInb3 'syjuswysnipy pousad Joud 00l L
£v9'€20'v$ 0% €¥9'€Z0'v$ 0% 120'cees 828'0£6'c$ 95C'6ELS- 0$ Aunb3 buluuibag 0coL L
L6Y'8YE'ES 0% L6Y'8vE'CS 0% 0% 9/v'8% Lzo'ore'cs 0$ sjuswAed |ediould 1gaQ [enuuy paiinbay 0zl L
V1 gt P ; ) o SENIE e NN
28LYLS'LS 0% 28L'vLS'LS 0% LL0°LCLS- 905'95%- 65€'869°'L$ 0$ (19pun) JOAQ), BNUBASY [B10 4O (AoUsIoaq]) SS30XT wooe

SIBUBHGA B ENel el
[elo L WIT13 [ejoigns uowc_wum“_mmo 201049 ==iAho e [ejo] yoaloid
4 BuisnoH ssauisng | i jusuodwo) :
ADOH DOH'PL 1/8bl 1’9

CC0C/LE/EQ pUT Jed |edsl

upny a|buig/paypny :edA| uoissiwgng

Arewwng ssuadx3 pue anuaAay apip Anug
N 'MHVYd ANV THOIH

(b¥OrN) Auoyiny BuisnoH sued puejybiH




467 Middletown Lincroft Road

G IAM PAO L O Lincroft, NJ 07738
& ASSOCIATES Tel: 732-842-4550

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners

Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park
242 South 6th Avenue

Highland Park, New Jersey 08904

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the governmental activities, business activities and the
aggregate discretely present component unit of Housing Authority of the Borough of
Highland Park, as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Housing Authority of the Borough of
Highland Park’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 2, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Housing
Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Housing
Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority of the Borough of
Highland Park’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Housing Authority of the
Borough of Highland Park’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Guiampaclo & dadocicles
Lincroft, New Jersey
Date: December 2, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Commissioners

Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park
242 South 6t Avenue

Highland Park, New Jersey 08904

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s compliance with
the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Housing
Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s major federal program for the year ended
March 31, 2022. Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s major federal
program are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal program for the year ended
March 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and
the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Housing
Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

82



Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of
contracts or grant agreements applicable to Housing Authority of the Borough of
Highland Park’s federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material
noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether
due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Housing Authority of the Borough of
Highland Park’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting
from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s compliance with the requirements
of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Housing
Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park’s
internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Housing Authority
of the Borough of Highland Park’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies
and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during
the audit.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
March 31, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.

A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified. Our audit was not designed
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing
based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Guampaolo & dadaciates
Lincroft, New Jersey
Date: December 2, 2022
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE BOROUGH OF HIGHLAND PARK
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cost

Year Ended March 31, 2022

Prior Audit Findings
None reported

Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements

Type of Auditor's Report Issued: Unmodified
Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
Material Weakness (es) [dentified? yes X no
Significant Deficiency(ies) identified that are
considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X none reported
Noncompliance Material to Financial Statements Noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over Major Programs:
Material Weakness (es) Identified? yes X no
Significant Deficiency(ies) identified that are
considered to be material weakness(es)? yes X none reported
Type of audit report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulation
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, yes X no
Identification of Major Programs
CFDA# Name of Federal Program Amount
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program $ 2,266,976
Dollar threshold used to Distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs ~ $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee X yes no

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
None reported

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM

AUDIT
None reported
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467 Middletown Lincroft Road
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Board of Commissioners

Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park
242 South 6th Avenue

Highland Park, New Jersey 08904

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on whether the electronic submission
of certain information agrees with the hard copy documents within the reporting package
for the year ended March 31, 2022. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC) is responsible for the Uniform
Financial Reporting Standards (UFRS) procedures.

Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park has agreed to and acknowledged that
the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of complying with
the REAC’s UFRS requirements for the submission of the PHA financial data for the year
ended March 31, 2022. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The
procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and
may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and the associated findings are as follows:

Does

Procedure UFRS Rule Information Hardcopy Documents Agrees Not
Agree

Balance Sheet and Revenue and | Financial Data Schedule of all

1 Expense (Data lines 111 to CFDAs, If Applicable Yes
13901)
Footnotes (data element Footnotes to the audited basic

2 G5000-010) financial statements Yes

Type of Opinion on FDS (data | Auditors Report on Supplemental
3 element G3100-040) Data Yes

Audit findings narrative (date Schedule of Findings and
4 element G5200-010) Questioned Costs Yes
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Does
Procedure | UFRS Rule Information Hardcopy Documents Agrees Not
Agree
General Information (data OMB Data Collection Form
5 element series G2000, G2100, Yes
G2200, G9000, G9100
Financial Statement report Schedule of Findings and
6 information (data element Questioned Costs, Part 1 and OMB Yes
G3000-010 to G3000-050) Data Collection Form
Federal program report Schedule of Findings and
7 information (data element Questioned Costs, Part 1 and OMB Yes
(G4000-020 to G4000-040 Data Collection Form
Type of Compliance OMB Data Collection Form
8 Requirement (G4200-020 & Yes
G4000-030)
Basic financial statements and Basic financial statements
9 auditor reports required to be (inclusive of auditor reports) Yes
submitted electronically

We were engaged by Housing Authority of the Borough of Highland Park to perform this
agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with
attestation standards established by the AICPA. We were not engaged to and did not
conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on UFRS Rule Information.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported
to you.

We are required to be independent of REAC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures
engagement.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Housing Authority of the
Borough of Highland Park and REAC, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Guampaolo & dasociatles
Lincroft, New Jersey
December 2, 2022
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